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     President Carmichael Presides 
 

    AGENDA 
    JOINT COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT AND FINANCE 

    July 23, 2019 
 
3:00 pm – 4:00 pm Senate Finance Room 
 
1) Approval of June 18, 2019 minutes: 
 
 President Carmichael: “The Committee will come to order. The first item on the agenda is the 

approval of the June 18, 2019. Speaker Hanshaw is recognized.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw: “I move the minutes of the June 18, 2019 meeting of the Joint Committee 
on Government and Finance as contained in the members packets be approved.” 
 
President Carmichael: “Speaker Hanshaw moves that the minutes be approved. Discussion? 
All in favor say aye, opposed no. The ayes appear to have it, the ayes do have it. The minutes 
are approved.” 
 

2.  Committee Reports/Requests: 
 

President Carmichael: “The Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Subcommittee has 
requested approval to tour North Bend State Park on August 11 – 13, 2019.  The approval would 
cover per diem costs and expenses for the staff and legislators of the Parks, Recreation and 
Natural Resources Subcommittee.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw: “I move the Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Subcommittee be 
approved to tour North Bend State Park on August 11 – 13, 2019.” 
 
President Carmichael: “Speaker Hanshaw moves that the Parks, Recreation and Natural 
Resources Subcommittee be approved to tour North Bend State Park.  Discussion?  All in favor 
say aye, opposed no.  The ayes appear to have it, the ayes do have it.  The Parks, Recreation 
and Natural Resources Subcommittee tour of North Bend State Park is approved. 

  
3. Monthly/Quarterly Reports Received: 
 
 President Carmichael:  The next order of business before the Committee are the 

Monthly/Quarterly Reports. Members will find in their packets the reports from each Agency.  
 
Status Reports on Lottery, Unemployment Compensation Fund, General Revenue Fund & State 
Road Fund 

(No one available to attend this month’s meeting) 
 
Status Reports on Lottery  
 (John Myers, Director, West Virginia Lottery Commission) 
 
General Revenue Fund & State Road Fund  
 (Mark Muchow, Deputy Secretary, West Virginia Department of Revenue) 
 
WorkForce WV Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund Distribution 

(Connie Kirk, UI Director, WorkForce West Virginia) 



 
Monthly/Quarterly Reports from PEIA, BRIM & Real Estate Report  

(Allan McVey, Secretary, Department of Administration) 
 

Department of Health & Human Resources, Medicaid Report & Medicaid Waiver Report 
(Cindy Beane, Commissioner, West Virginia Bureau for Medical Services)  
  

Children’s Health Insurance Program Report 
  (Jean Kranz, CHIP Executive Director, WVCHIP) 
 

Investment Management Board Distribution 
(Rod Livingston, Sr. Investment Officer, West Virginia Investment Management Board)  
 

Workers Compensation 
  (James Dodrill, Insurance Commissioner, West Virginia Offices of the Insurance 

Commissioner) 
 

Board of Treasury Report Distribution 
 

4.        Other Business 
  

(Byrd White, Cabinet Secretary, WV Department of Transportation, regarding DOH 
worker pay) 
 
 

5. Adjournment: 
 

President Carmichael:  “Any further business to come before the Committee? If not, I recognize 
Speaker Hanshaw for a motion to adjourn.” 

 
 Speaker Hanshaw:  “Mr. Speaker, I move that we adjourn.” 

 
President Carmichael:  “All those in favor say aye, opposed no. The ayes appear to have it, 
the ayes do have it, the meeting is adjourned.”  
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JOINT COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT AND FINANCE 
(Speaker Hanshaw) 

June 18, 2019 
 

5:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
 
Senate House 
Carmichael, Chair Hanshaw, Chair 
Blair Bates  
Plymale Cowles (absent) 
Prezioso Householder  
Takubo (absent) Miley  
Trump Shott 
Weld (absent Summers 

 
 

Speaker Hanshaw:  “Okay, looks like we do have a quorum. Let’s call this 
month’s meeting of the Joint Committee to order. The chair recognizes President 
Carmichael for a motion.” 
 

President Carmichael:  “Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I move the minutes of May 20, 
2019, meeting of the Joint Committee on Government and Finance as contained in the 
members’ packets be approved.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “President Carmichael moves that the meeting … the 

minutes of the meeting of the May 20th meeting of this committee be approved as 
distributed. Is there discussion? If not, those in favor will say aye, any opposed, no. Ayes 
have it. The Chair declares the motion adopted. The first business in order today are the 
reports of the various agencies. We’ll start with Lottery, Unemployment and General 
Revenue, Mr. Spencer.” 

 
William Spencer:  “Thank you Mr. President, Mr. Speaker, and members of the 

subcommittee. My name is William Spencer. I’m the Director of the Legislative Budget 
Division here to answer any questions about the monthly status reports.  

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Mr. Spencer is here for Lottery, Unemployment 

Compensation, General Revenue Fund and the State Road Fund. Questions of Mr. 
Spencer about anything contained in any of his reports or his contribution to the packet? 
Okay, if not, Mr. Spencer, thank you for being here.  

 
The Lottery, Mr. Myers? Anyone here from the Lottery? No one is here from the 

Lottery today, okay? 
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 That brings us to General Revenue Fund and State Road Fund, Mr. Muchow.” 
 
Mark Muchow:  “Mark Muchow, WV Department of Revenue. For the month of 

May the state ran a surplus of $46.4 million. Collections were for General Revenue are 
15.8% ahead of the prior year. So, very impressive growth on General Revenue. A big 
part of that was in the income taxes. The personal income taxes exceeded estimate by 
$25.8 million. That was up 19.3% from the prior year. The biggest portion of which was 
what I would refer to as annual return type payments, a bit of a carry-over from April, and 
certainly symptomatic of the impact of federal tax reform. Which has been very positive 
among all the states for the most part.  

 
Now, federal tax revenues are down, particularly the corporate tax revenues. But 

some of the … some of that revenue got picked up by the states because of the behavioral 
reaction on the part of tax payers associated with the federal tax reductions.  

 
Withholding tax for the month of May was ahead of last year by 5.3%. Year to date, 

up 9.6%. On the corporate side, same situation there. We have tax payer behavioral 
reactions to federal tax reductions, and in that situation revenues in May more than 
doubled. We were $8.8 million ahead of estimate, and year to date we’re ahead of last 
year by 75.3%. So, that’s a tremendous amount of growth.  

 
A lot of incentive for corporations to move income in 2018 when the tax rates are 

lower and maybe to some extent shift expenses to periods prior, when tax rates were 
higher. So, that’s … the impact. Again, at the federal level, negative but the state level is 
positive.  

 
The severance tax continues to do fairly well. We were up 17.9% in April, $6.2 

million … or, in May, $6.2 million surplus. Year to date, we’re still running for General 
Revenue purposes, 32.2% ahead of last year. The numbers show increases across the 
board. The biggest increase percentage wise is in oil and the other natural gas liquid 
categories were up more than 90% from the prior year. A little bit less increase by 28% 
natural gas and about 22% in coal for the latest complete periods. Tobacco products tax 
actually exceeded estimate in May, but by $2.5 million was 13.2% ahead of last year. But 
that’s simply a timing of when cigarette stamps are purchased. You would look … I would 
look to the year to date numbers more so than a single month for cigarette tax or tobacco 
taxes, and year to date, we’re running 2.4% below last years. So, there’s continuing 
decline in consumption of tobacco related products in the state. So, that’s one source of 
revenue that’s going down.  

 
Overall, general revenue was ahead of estimate by $81 million at the end of May. 

Year to date, 11.8% growth. A tremendous amount of growth on the revenue side. Again, 
income taxes, sales tax, and severance tax are basically the contributing factors there.  

Of course, the Governor recently revised his revenue estimates up by $98 million. 
We need revenue growth for the whole year of about 11.7% to get to the $98 million. So, 
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June should be a continuation of a reasonably good month to get to those year end 
estimates. 

 
On the road fund, in May overall collections were $2.1 million ahead of estimate. 

Compared to the prior year, down 15.6%. But a lot of that had to do with federal 
reimbursements. Federal reimbursements were down by over 50% from the prior year. If 
you look at state only revenue, state only revenues were $78.4 million. The estimate was 
$72.6. We are about $5.8 million ahead of estimate on state only revenues. Also, 6.9% 
ahead of last year. The biggest headline there is registration fees. Registration fees did 
really well in May. We were $7.3 million ahead of estimate for the month.  

 
Year to date, overall collections are ahead of … or are actually slightly behind last 

year by 0.9%. But if you look at only the state source revenues, we’re ahead by 1.4%. 
State only source revenues are also $26.6 million ahead of last year. Headlined by 
registration fees, which are running $25 million ahead of estimate, 17% ahead of last 
year. Motor vehicle sales tax, about $3.2 million ahead of estimate, 3.9% ahead of last 
year. Motor fuel tax, $4.2 million below estimate, but 3.7% ahead of last year and by the 
end of the year the motor fuel tax should be pretty much on estimate.  

 
Federal reimbursements are coming in and we’ll be in the neighborhood of where 

they were last year by the end of the year. There was recently a supplemental 
appropriation of $50.4 million of general revenue. It’s in the State Road Fund. That will 
show up in the miscellaneous line item in June. In addition, there is another supplemental 
appropriation for a little over $50 million that’s under consideration right now. So, both of 
those are enacted. The total General Revenue Fund amounts provided to the State Road 
Fund would be in excess of $104 million. Which would, again be in the miscellaneous 
revenue category for state funds. If you have any questions, feel free to entertain them.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Thank you very much, Mark. Questions for Mr. Muchow? 

Yes, Delegate Shott.” 
 
Delegate Shott:  “Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I’m wondering, this phenomenon that 

you describe regarding the effect of the federal tax changes, is it likely to continue to have 
a major impact on West Virginia collections of state or income tax, either corporate or 
individual? Or do you think that’ll sort of even out over time?” 

 
Mark Muchow:  “I think things will … they will be positive, a bit positive for the 

long term, but not nearly as positive as it has been in the short term. So, I think things will 
ease back a little bit over time. One indication that I looked at, usually when people make 
a lot of payments on their annual returns they’ll also up their payment for estimated 
income tax. The estimated income tax payment for the quarter was down about 8.6% 
from the prior year. So, not seeing people contribute extra to the estimated payment for 
outsource suggested on that side that things are relatively flat. Now a significant amount 
of the income tax coming in, at least the last couple of months is also coming from, what 
I refer to as pass-through entities, business entities. So, we’re seeing a big pickup in 
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nonresident withholding taxes. Which are typical taxes that come in from pass-through 
entities. Which are, again, possibly effected. Just like the C corporations in terms of the 
federal tax reductions.” 

 
Delegate Shott:  “In terms of planning for what we will expect next year, is this 

going to have … do you think … because you said it’s likely not to be as positive. Are we 
talking about a significant change? If everything else stayed the same, we would receive 
a substantially lesser amount of income taxes, either corporate or personal? Or do you 
think it’s just insignificant, the difference?” 

 
Mark Muchow:  “I think a lesser amount of growth or a more static situation might 

emerge sometime in the future. Of course, the revenue estimates for next fiscal year’s 
budget are a bit less than what we think is going to come in this year. So, we’ve lined up 
the estimates and the budget for that purpose. The Legislature enacted the budget that 
did not spend the whole entire estimate.  

 
For a more conservative outlook going forward, in the event that things kind of 

unwind a little bit, and it’ll be difficult for the state to have huge growth rates and revenues 
next fiscal year coming off such a huge … it doesn’t mean it won’t happen. I’ve been 
proven wrong many times, but it’ll be just a little more difficult next year to obtain the type 
of growth that we’ve seen this year in the collections.” 

 
Delegate Shott:  “But in terms of the current budget estimates for next year, you 

think they’re pretty safe?” 
 
Mark Muchow:  “Right now they appear to be pretty safe. But in recent years in 

West Virginia, we’ve seen extremes. Just a couple of years ago, we were down 7.5%.  
This year we’re up, you know, close to 12%. So, just be prepared for that potential type 
movements.  

 
We’re getting a lot of … if you look at the economic data, a lot of the gains in 

personal income and wage and salary. In GDP, it’s coming from the construction sector. 
In fact, the last … estimates by Bureau of Economic Analysis at the federal level would 
peg of over half of our growth, and in terms of income … I’m talking about wage and 
salary income, and in terms of GDP and the construction sector itself. Which related a lot 
to the pipeline sector last year, and this year we get a little extra kick coming in from the 
public infrastructure side, particularly roads. I expect that to be a little more helpful in 
coming months. The pipelines, and I'm not sure we’re going to grow a whole lot from last 
year on the pipelines. Last year was a great year. It’s going to also depend upon what 
happens in some court cases that are pending. Some pipelines are not … basically held 
back a little bit on the construction side right now.” 

 
Delegate Shott:  “Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Speaker.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Other questions for Mr. Muchow? Okay, if not, Senator 
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Blair.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “Thank you. Last month, Mr. Speaker, I requested the Department 

of Transportation come in. I see that they’re here, and I think this is probably the 
appropriate point in this agenda, here, that we could get them to the podium and have 
them give us an update on the Roads to Prosperity and secondary roads and things like 
that.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Okay, the Chair does see that Secretary White is present. 

Is there objection to having Secretary White take the podium to respond to questions? 
Okay, if not, Mr. Muchow, thank you very much. Mr. Secretary we welcome you to the 
podium at this time if you’re willing.” 

 
Byrd White:  “I’ll do the best I can do. I partnered Jimmy with me. So, if I don’t 

know, he might.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Very good. Senator, you’re recognized to start.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “Thank you. Thank you for being here. Hopefully this is a monthly 

event or every meeting that you come in and give us a little bit of an update, what’s going 
on. You can start out with the Roads of Prosperity. The bond, how much it was sold for, 
what the debt service is on that, and how many contracts that’s been issued out there, 
and how much has been paid out, and anything else that you want to say about Roads to 
Prosperity. Then we’ll go into secondary roads.” 

 
Byrd White:  “I think in general I can tell you that we sold the bonds at a premium, 

we will have put out all of the Roads to Prosperity projects that were stated for the first 
bond by August. We think that we’ll be able to take care getting all those projects done. 
Even though they came in, the bids are coming in much higher than the original estimates 
were. What we’ve done is sure that up with some federal funding and federal match that 
… we’ll be able to get all those projects done. We’re looking at, late this calendar year, or 
early next year to sell a second set of bonds and we’re getting those projects lined up so 
that we’ve got a good list and a better estimate of what we think it’s going to cost.” 

 
Senator Blair:  “Okay. The debt service on that first bond is $55 million. Is that 

correct?” 
 
Byrd White:  “That is correct, yes sir, 55.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “And it was supposed to be $800 million that was let on that first 

bond. What was it actually?” 
 
Byrd White:  “It was $913, I believe.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “Nine thirteen. So, does that $913 actually cover the difference 
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on the increased … when you’re saying the contracts are coming in for more?” 
 
Byrd White:  “No sir, it didn’t. We’ve taken the …” 
 
Senator Blair:  “Can you go into more detail on that, then, for us, to help us 

understand?” 
 
Byrd White:  “I can give you some detail, is that many of those estimates were 

kind of pulled off the shelf and they were two, three years old, and inflation got them. And 
some of them were just … the project grew. The scope of the project grew. So, I think the 
total is going to be in the neighborhood of 1.1 … about $1.1 billion. So, what we’ve done 
is take some of our money and used federal match to the projects that we were short on, 
to come up where we finished the projects.” 

 
Senator Blair:  “Okay. I failed to thank you for being here. As you’re answering 

these questions, I know some of these things can be … you might not have all the 
information in front of you and you can be thinking about it, and next month you can sure 
up the questions that I’m asking, or anybody else would ask as well. So, we go month to 
month. As you know, roads have been a hot issue and that’s one of the reasons why I 
brought this up, so that we could actually be informed about what’s going on from the 
source itself and if you can’t answer today, just say so. Because come back next month, 
you can fill that in. Is there anything I didn’t ask that maybe I should have asked on the 
Roads to Prosperity?” 

 
Byrd White:  “Not that I can think of, no sir.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “Okay, going on to the secondary roads, where it’s another issue 

on that. Talk to us about that. I’ve made speeches to this fact, and you’ve probably heard 
them. Where we’re talking about that, you know, we increase the taxes on the licensing, 
the registrations, and 1% increase on the automobiles, and it was supposed to generate 
roughly $135 million. It’s my understanding that it’s generating about $140 - $142 million 
a year. Okay, that debt service that I talked about a while ago, for $55 million extracted 
off and you’ve got $80, $85, $87 million, something like that in that ballpark that is pay as 
you go. And that was one of the things that was talked about a lot, especially in the House 
of Delegates when we were moving the Roads to Prosperity through was, is that a lot of 
the folks wanted to do pay as you go. And so, that money is available now and one of the 
things it was is that, from my recollection, was that we were freeing up money by the 
Roads of Prosperity to be able to do more work on secondary roads, and I’ve been trying 
to get to the bottom of that number because we’re getting supplementals, two $50 million 
supplementals for additional money into the road. So, I’m trying to get my mind wrapped 
around how much money is actually going to secondary roads above what it was, say pre 
tax increases and pre Roads to Prosperity? So that we can see where we’re getting 
results. Do you see what I’m saying? Results isn’t the right word, but … know whether 
we’re taking the right action.” 

 



7 
 

Byrd White:  “The results is what we count. Not how much money we spent, what 
we get done. We’re trying to change some of the paradigm on that to where people are 
looking at more, “Okay, here’s what you got done.” What you spend is what you had. The 
money that you all gave us, here a couple of months ago, we will spend almost all of it. It 
depends on how some of our purchase order paving comes in. Some of our invoices, 
whether they get in this year or they get pushed over to next year, whether they get the 
job done. But, basically all that money went to maintenance.  

 
And then the increase that you gave us for next year, we intend to do that … the 

one you’ve already given us. We intend to use that to maintain the level of maintenance, 
to try to catch up on decades of being behind. Most of it, basic maintenance, putting in 
drainage, putting in pipes, ditching roads, spot paving, filling pot holes, all of the constant 
… the typical maintenance work. Now, the $50 million which you all have under 
consideration today, or the 52 something, the … that money we intend to use roughly 
50/50 on bridges and slips, slips and slides and bridges. We’ve got 1,700 slips and slides 
in our state which need to be addressed. We’ve got about 7,000 bridges in this state and 
according to the Federal Highways Commission, about 40% of them are what they call 
deficient. Now, that’s not dangerous, that’s deficient. They may need some paint, they 
may need the deck replaced. It’s a lot of different stuff. But if 40% of our bridges are 
deficient, we’ve got 2,800 bridges to work on. We intend to … we can’t do it all, even with 
$50 million. That’s a lot of money but we can’t get it all done. We intend to address the 
worst bridges and the worst slips to try to get a hold of it.” 

 
Senator Blair:  “One more question on this, and … are there enough contractors 

out here right now, or is that driving the price up on what we’re doing on some of this 
work, because of lack of competition, so to speak on it, and then you don’t have it … it’s 
driving our price up because you don’t have enough people?” 

 
Byrd White:  “It is absolutely a problem. That’s one of the reasons … one of the 

reasons that we’re moving to this different type of work, because it is different contractors 
that do the things like slips and slides and bridges. That’s a different set of contractors 
than the ones who are out paving roads and that sort of thing.” 

 
Senator Blair:  “I’m going to say one more thing before I relinquish the mic. 

There’s things that you probably notice that you might need help on legislatively, or make 
awareness that needs to be given to us. Next month, when you come back, please do 
that. Make a list to be able to share these things with us that … because I’m asking a few 
questions here, but we’ll have more next month from me, or whatever. But, you can 
anticipate some of them. We’re wanting to help. Being able to … if there’s something … 
like the hiring practices was an issue, and you probably still have somewhat of a problem 
with that, correct?” 

 
Byrd White:  “We do. We hired 50 people last month, a net 50 last month. So, 

we’re starting to make end roads on that. But it’s still a problem.”  
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Senator Blair:  “Well, come prepared to be able to tell us these things, and say, 
“this is why we’re having problems hiring,” and what’s going on. Make us aware of that so 
that we can actually come back, and if it’s something that is statutory in issue, that we 
may be able to come in and address that, and make it so that you can do your job more 
efficiently. That’s why I’m extending my hand out for that. Because I’d be more than willing 
to be able to help with that if it’s possible.” 

 
Byrd White:  “Thank you. Thank you, we’ll take all the help we can get.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “Well, bring your laundry list.” 
 
Byrd White:  “I will try to do that next month, bring to you more information. I’m 

still learning this job. But we’ll get there.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “Well, my point that I was trying to make is, I’m not here to 

interrogate you, and I want a two way conversation on what’s going on. So that we can 
actually … you’ve got all the leaders of the Legislature here, where we can try to be able 
to help if you’ve got issues especially statutory issues, that we’re aware of it. That way 
we’re not trying to draft legislation in January. We can be doing it in September, October 
and preparing for this, and making our members aware of what’s going on and developing 
that consensus to be able to get things across the line.” 

 
Byrd White:  “Yes sir, and I don’t take this as an interrogation. You all have the 

right to know what we’re doing. We want to be as transparent as we can. Just right now I 
don’t know what I need to know. But I’m learning every day. They’re trying to teach me.” 

 
Senator Blair:  “Thank you for being here, I appreciate it.” 
 
Byrd White:  “Yes sir.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Do any members have brief questions for the Secretary? If 

not, Mr. Secretary, we thank you for being here today.” 
 
Byrd White:  “Thank you.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “That brings us to Connie Kirk, Workforce WV for an update 

on the Compensation Trust Fund.” 
 
Connie Kirk:  “Good evening Mr. President, Mr. Speaker, and members of the 

committee. I’m Connie Kirk. I’m the UI Director for Workforce West Virginia and I’m here 
to give you a trust fund update. The actual June projection is … the trust fund is 
$206,708,825. I actually pulled the balance today for you. As of today, the trust fund has 
$207,782,993. The national unemployment rate at this point is 3.6. West Virginia’s rate 
dropped by 0.1 and is 4.8 this month.  
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I don’t really have anything else unless you have some questions that you would 
like me to answer.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Thank you very much. Questions of Ms. Kirk? Mr. 

President.” 
 
President Carmichael:  “Yes, thank you. Last month we discussed briefly about 

the trigger at which point the rates would be reduced. Did you … were you able to look 
into that and …?” 

 
Connie Kirk:  “Yes, I sent an email with the information. Did you not receive an 

email?” 
 
President Carmichael:  “I may have, but I don’t …” 
 
Connie Kirk:  “That’s okay, that’s okay. I’ve got it with me. What I did is I pulled it 

out of the law, and what it actually is, as in the law, it states that on the 15th of February 
of any year, you can actually at that point in time, the Legislature will look at the Trust 
Fund balance. If the Trust Fund balance … in the law it states, is $220 million at that point, 
will be up to the Legislature, they can actually change the threshold back from $12,000 
to $9,000 and then once that is taken care of, at that point, it increases by percentage 
every year based on the state’s average wage increase or decrease.” 

 
President Carmichael:  “Is it … do you in your educated analysis project that it 

will be at that level on February 15th?” 
 
Connie Kirk:  “The actual projection for the end of the year is actually $240 

million. Based on what I’m seeing right now, unless we have some type of downward 
swing in something that I’m not aware of, I would think that it would be at the $220.” 

 
President Carmichael:  “And so it’s … the way it’s written in statute, it’s a 

permissive statute that the Legislature may, if it …” 
 
Connie Kirk:  “That’s the way I understand it, but I’m not a lawyer. So, I don’t 

know that. But it does state, once it is actually reduced, that every year, that it will be 
looked at, and if the threshold of the wages increases or decreases by a percentage, that 
will increase or decrease too.” 

 
President Carmichael:  “Alright, thank you very much.” 
 
Connie Kirk:  “But the other thing too, to remember too, is once we change it from 

the $220 million and we actually decrease it to $9,000, we have not … we have frozen 
the weekly benefit amount since this went into Legislation. So, it has been frozen all those 
years, and that will unfreeze that as well. So, that might be something you want to take 
into consideration. Because, I don’t have it with me at the … if memory serves me right, 
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it's $424 right now, for 26 weeks, if you make the maximum. I think it goes up to over 
$500 if we reduce it down to the $9,000.” 

 
President Carmichael:  “Thank you Mr. Speaker.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Senator Plymale.” 
 
Senator Plymale:  “Thank you. I’ve got a real lengthy question. No, just educate 

again. I know that I’ve gone through this before, but in December we always have the … 
less receipts than we do disbursements and what … is there a reason for that?” 

 
Connie Kirk:  “There is. The first quarter of the year, every employer pretty much 

pays on every employee. Because they pay up to the $12,000. As the year goes along, 
once they … if they … if the employees make a lot of money, at like the third quarter, the 
second or third quarter, some of those employees have already made $12,000. So, the 
employer has already paid their unemployment taxes on that individual. So, that’s why it 
keeps decreasing as the year goes along.” 

 
Senator Plymale:  “Okay, I just wanted to make sure I … I remember the 

explanation before, but I couldn’t recall it. Thank you.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Senator Blair.” 
 
Senator Blair:  “I’d like to ask the same question again as the Senate President.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “And with that, we’ll thank Ms. Kirk for being here today.” 
 
Connie Kirk:  “Thank you so much. You’ve made my evening.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “That brings us to PEIA, BRIM, and the Real Estate report. 

Mr. McVey.” 
 
Allan McVey:  “Thank you Mr. President, Mr. Speaker, esteemed members of the 

committee. You have our reports. I would be happy to entertain any questions, and I also 
have representatives from each of our divisions here as well.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Questions from the committee on Mr. McVey’s reports on 

PEIA, BRIM, and the Real Estate report? Okay, if none, Mr. Secretary, we thank you and 
your team for being here today.” 

 
Allan McVey:  “Thank you very much, we appreciate it.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Let’s move on to DHHR, for Medicaid and Medicaid 

Waiver.” 
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Cindy Beane:  “Thank you Mr. President, Mr. Speaker, members of the 
committee. You have the reports before you. Are there any questions?” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Questions from any committee members? Medicaid and 

the Medicaid Waiver report. Okay, if none, we thank you very much. Stacey Shamblin for 
CHIP.” 

 
Stacey Shamblin:  “Good evening Mr. Speaker, Mr. President, members of the 

committee. You have the CHIP reports. I’ll be happy to answer any questions.  
Just to make you aware, in case you are not, we have a new director starting July 

1st. Her name is Jean Kranz, and we’re excited.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Okay, if there are no questions, Stacey, we thank you very 

much. That brings us to the Investment Management Board, Mr. Livingston.” 
 
Rod Livingston:  “I’m Rod Livingston from Investment Management Board. I’m 

standing in for Craig today. I’ll just make a couple of really quick comments. You’ve got 
the April report. I would be very surprised if we got 7.5% this fiscal year. You know, you 
saw we didn’t make it in April. I will point out that for the three-year period, we’ve averaged 
above that. For the 10-year period, the same thing. Five-year period, we’re pretty close 
to it. So, I mean, it’s just variable on a year to year basis.  

 
A quick update on what’s happened since April. I mean, May was a bad month in 

equities. That benefited fixed income returns as people sought safer investments. Which 
helped the insurance plans. But the DV plans suffered. The real root cause of that seemed 
to be, the market had expected that the U.S. and China would work out a trade deal, and 
so additional tariffs would not be imposed. They were. Also U.S. and … talked about 
adding tariffs to Mexican imports. That was a big effect for the economy. The economy 
markets just dove at that point. They recovered somewhat when the fed chairman came 
out and said that they would be willing to review what’s going on in the economy in terms 
of their rates. The market interpreted that as a rate cut expected. They’re now looking at 
100 basis points this year. Obviously, if that doesn’t happen that would be another effect 
for the market, but we’ll see.  

 
We have seen some recovery additionally in June after we started in May, with the 

Mexican tariffs being suspended. The possibility of Mexican tariffs being suspended, that 
helped the markets.  

 
I cannot tell you what’s going to happen going forward. You know, I couldn’t have 

told you last year what happened this last year … this last year what was going to happen, 
so … but there are some issues out there. It appears that the UK exit from the EU is more 
likely to happen with no agreement than what was previously expected. That could affect 
trade in a lot of different ways that people haven’t really got their mind around. The US 
and Iran are having issues in the Gulf of Roman … Oman, sorry. Which even if it doesn’t 
lead to armed conflict, you know, it’s going to affect the oil prices.  
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The Hong Kong protest, you know, China is a big economy. They have historically 

come down very strictly on any kind of protest. They’re more engaged globally now. We’ll 
see if it changes, but that could lead to some hiccup. On the good side, the U.S. and 
China are the two largest economies in the world, and all this … although there are some 
signs of slow ups, they’re both doing really well. They’re both growing still well, at good 
rates. So, I mean, there are a lot of positive things out there. If there’s any questions I’d 
be happy to try to answer them.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Okay, questions for Mr. Livingston from any member of the 

committee about Brexit or international relations, investments? Okay, if not, Mr. 
Livingston, thank you very much. Mr. Dodrill, Workers’ Compensation.” 

 
James Dodrill:  “Good evening Mr. Speaker, Mr. President, members of the 

committee. I believe you have our report which is really, virtually unchanged from last 
month. I’ll be happy to answer any questions if there are any.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Are there questions for Mr. Dodrill about the report? The 

chair sees none. Mr. Dodrill, we thank you very much.  
 
Is there any other business to come before the committee today? The Chair will 

note for the record that West Virginia University has notified us of a $1.7 million property 
purchase as required by WV Code 18B-19-13. Okay if there are … if there’s no … yes, 
Delegate Shott.” 

 
Delegate Shott:  “I have one, or perhaps two questions that I’d like to ask the 

committee. We had a proposed amendment offered yesterday in the House dealing with 
the Opportunity Zone Tax Incentive, which reported to request or direct a study be done 
by WVU regarding the effects of that program and I think there was some concern 
expressed during the questioning as to whether … who pays the cost of that and it was a 
report that would … if the amendment had been adopted, it would have directed that the 
report be filed with this committee. So, my question is, 1) How is that handled from the 
standpoint of who pays for those types of reports? And, 2) If we feel as a committee that 
this would be useful information. My understanding is that we don’t have to have 
legislation, we can actually direct, as a committee, that such a report be filed. So, that’s 
my questions. Hopefully somebody can answer.” 

 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “The Chair did make inquiry to that effect, Delegate, after 

our exchange this morning to that effect, and the Chair is advised that the President and 
Speaker as Joint Chairs of this committee can make such a request of our staff.” 

 
Delegate Shott:  “And in terms of the payment, is that done as part of the 

University’s service to the state or is that something they bill us for?” 
 

Speaker Hanshaw:  “Well, the cost would be absorbed by the Joint Committee, 
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by our budget.” 
 
Delegate Shott:  “Is there a … I’m sorry to keep following up, is there a way to 

put something like that out to bid among the various higher education institutions?” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “The Chair is being advised by the Legislative Auditor that 

the answer is yes, there is.” 
 
Delegate Shott:  “Okay, thank you.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “Other business to come before the committee? If not, the 

Chair recognizes President Carmichael.” 
 
President Carmichael:  “Thank you Mr. Speaker. I move the committee be 

adjourned.” 
 
Speaker Hanshaw:  “President Carmichael moves the committee adjourn. Those 

in favor will please say aye. Any opposed will please say no. The ayes have it, the Chair 
declares the committee adjourned. 
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July 16, 2019 

Executive Summary WV Lottery, Unemployment Trust, General Revenue and State Road Fund 

 

• West Virginia Lottery as of April 30, 2019: 
Gross profit year to date was $434.7 million.  Gross profit for fiscal year 2018 was $416.5 million.   
 

• West Virginia Unemployment Compensation Fund as of June 30, 2019:     
Total disbursements were $ 18 million higher than in fiscal year 2018.  Overall ending trust fund 

balance was $68.5 million higher on June 30, 2019 than on June 30, 2018. 

 

• General Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2019:                                                                                               

The general revenue collections ended the final month of fiscal year 2019 at 100% of the 

estimate for the year.             

 

• State Road Fund as of June 30, 2019:                                                                                                                                             

The state road fund collections ended the final month of fiscal year 2019 at 104% of the 

estimate for the year.      
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MEMORANDUM       

        

To:      Honorable Chairmen and Members of the Joint Committee on  

           Government and Finance 

 

From:  William Spencer, CPA  

           Director Budget Division 

           Legislative Auditor's Office    

          

Date:  June 07, 2019 

 

Re:    Review of West Virginia Lottery Financial Information 

           As of April 30, 2019  

 

We performed an analysis of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

and Changes in Fund Net Position for April 30, 2019, from monthly 

unaudited financial reports furnished to our office by the West 

Virginia Lottery Commission.  The results are as follows: 

 

Lottery Revenues: 

 

Gross lottery revenues are receipts from on-line games, instant 

games, video lottery, table games, historic resort, and sports 

wagering.  These gross receipts totaled $949.2 million for July - 

April 2019.  Table games accounted for $29.4 million of this total.  

Historic Resort Hotel accounted for $6.2 million of total gross 

receipts.  Gross lottery revenue has increased by 5% when compared 

with July - April of fiscal year 2017-2018.  This number does not 

include commission and prize deductions.  Gross profit (gross 

revenues minus commissions and prize costs) for July – April 2019 

was $434.7 million; for July - April of last fiscal year it was 

$416.5 million. Expressed as a percentage, gross profit is 4.4% 

higher for fiscal year 2019 than for fiscal year 2018. 
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Operating Transfers to the State of West Virginia:  

 

A total of $416,562,000.00 has been accrued to the state of West 

Virginia for fiscal year 2018-2019.  This is on an accrual basis 

and may not correspond to the actual cash transfers made during 

the same time period.  Amount owed to the different accounts 

according to the Lottery Act are calculated monthly and accrued to 

the state; actual cash transfers are often made based upon actual 

cash flow needs of the day-to-day operation of the lottery. 

 

A schedule of cash transfers follows: 

 

State Lottery Fund: 

           

Community and Technical 

College 

       $4,997,000.00 

Bureau of Senior Services        $45,169,000.00 

Department of Education          $18,527,000.00 

Library Commission $11,454,000.00 

Higher Education-Policy 

Commission 

$7,084,000.00 

Tourism          $6,550,000.00 

Department of Natural 

Resources 

       $3,196,000.00 

Division of Culture and 

History 

$4,078,000.00 

Department of Education and 

Arts 

         $250,000.00 

Educational Broadcast 

Authority 

$7,359,000 

General Revenue Fund $0.00 

Economic Development Authority $9,993,000.00 

School Building Authority          $18,000,000.00 

SUBTOTAL BUDGETARY TRANSFERS         $136,657,000.00 
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Excess Lottery Fund 

 

Economic Development Fund $21,020,000.00 

Higher Education Improvement 

Fund 

$15,000,000.00 

General Purpose Fund    $55,970,000.00 

Higher Education Improvement 

Fund 

$24,971,000.00 

State Park Improvement Fund         $4,305,000.00                                       

School Building Authority         $18,989,000.00      

Refundable Credit                $3,155,000.00   

WV Racing Commission           $1,722,000.00 

WV DHHR $0.00 

Teacher’s Retirement Savings $0.00 

Division of Human Services $8,000,000.00 

WV Lottery Statutory Transfers $43,073,000.00 

General Revenue $0.00 

Office of Technology $18,425,000.00 

Excess Lottery Surplus $0.00 

WV Infrastructure Council Fund $40,445,000.00 

Total State Excess Lottery 

Revenue Fund 

                                                                                                            

$255,075,000.00 

                       

Total Budgetary Distributions: $391,732,000.00 

Veterans Instant Ticket Fund $396,000.00 

TOTAL TRANSFERS *$392,128,000.00 

* CASH BASIS 
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Total Accrued last FY 2018:                      $120,860,000.00 

Total Cash Distributions FY 2019:                $392,128,000.00 

Applied to FY 2018:                              $120,860,000.00                                                 

Applied to FY 2019:                              $271,268.000.00 

Accrued for FY 2019 as of April 30:              $145,294,000.00 



P.O. BOX 2067 
CHARLESTON, WV 25327 

~ 
fiVJiGiiiiA" 

LOTTERY 

JOHNAMYERS 
DIRECTOR 

PHONE: 304.558.0500 
wvlottery.com 

-------------------------------------------

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 
FROM: 

Joint Committee on Government and Fina~nce 
1ohn A. Myers, Di1ector flf;.mr 

RE: Monthly Report on Lottery Operations 
Month Ending April 30, 2019 

DATE: May 16,2019 

This report of the Lottery operations is provided pursuant to the State Lottery Aqt. 

Financial statements of the Lottery for the. month ending April 30, 2019 are attached. Lottery revenue, which 
includes on-line, instant, video lottery sales, table games, and historic resort, was $96,107,140 for the month of 
April. 

Transfers of lottery revenue totaling $61 ,908,414 made for the month of April to the designated state agencies 
per Senate Bi11160, Veterans Instant Ticket Fund, Racetrack Video Lottery Act (§29-22A-10), and the Racetrack 
Table Games Act(§29-22C-27). The amount transferred to each agency is shown in Note 11 on pages 19 and 20 
of the attached financial statements. 

The number oftraditional and limited retailers active as of April30, 2019 was 1,482 and 1,260 respectively. 

A listing of the names and amounts of prize winners has been provided to the Clerk of the Senate, the Clerk of 
the House and Legislative Services. 

If any member of the Committee has questions concerning the Lottery, please call me. Also if any members of the 
Legislature wish to visit the Lottery offices, I would be pleased to show them our facilities and discuss the 
Lottery with them. 

JAM 
Attachment 

pc: Honorable Jim Justice, Governor 
Dave Hardy, Cabinet Secretary- Dept. of Revenue 
John Perdue, Treasurer 
J. B. McCuskey, Auditor · 
Members of the West Virginia Lottery Commission 



 

 

 

 

                                        

 

 

 

 
   

 

   

 

                   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

TO:            Joint Committee on Government and Finance 

FROM:      John A. Myers, Director 

 

RE:            Monthly Report on Lottery Operations 

                  Month Ending April 30, 2019 
 

DATE:     May 16, 2019 
 

This report of the Lottery operations is provided pursuant to the State Lottery Act. 
 

Financial statements of the Lottery for the month ending April 30, 2019 are attached. Lottery revenue, which 

includes on-line, instant, video lottery sales, table games, and historic resort, was $96,107,140 for the month of 

April. 
 

Transfers of lottery revenue totaling $61,908,414  made for the month of April to the designated state agencies 

per Senate Bill 160, Veterans Instant Ticket Fund, Racetrack Video Lottery Act (§29-22A-10), and the Racetrack 

Table Games Act(§29-22C-27). The amount transferred to each agency is shown in Note 11 on pages 19 and 20 

of the attached financial statements. 
 

The number of traditional and limited retailers active as of April 30, 2019 was 1,482 and 1,260 respectively. 
 

A listing of the names and amounts of prize winners has been provided to the Clerk of the Senate, the Clerk of 

the House and Legislative Services. 
 

If any member of the Committee has questions concerning the Lottery, please call me. Also if any members of the 

Legislature wish to visit the Lottery offices, I would be pleased to show them our facilities and discuss the 

Lottery with them. 
 

 

JAM 

Attachment 

 

pc:  Honorable Jim Justice, Governor 

       Dave Hardy, Cabinet Secretary – Dept. of Revenue 

         John Perdue, Treasurer 

       J. B. McCuskey, Auditor 

       Members of the West Virginia Lottery Commission 
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April 30, June 30,

ASSETS 2019 2018

Current Assets:

        Cash and cash equivalents     $ 164,729    $ 146,661

        Accounts receivable        35,453 32,136

        Inventory      574 529

        Other assets             1,529 1,175

                  Total Current Assets          202,285 180,501

        Capital assets 61,552 61,552

        Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (14,900) (13,505)

        Net Capital Assets 46,652 48,047

                           Total Noncurrent Assets 46,652 48,047

                           Total Assets     $ 248,937     $ 228,548

       Deferred outflows of resources     $ 1,339     $ 1,339

          Total assets and deferred outflows     $ 250,276     $ 229,887

Current Liabilities:

       Accrued nonoperating distributions to the 

                State of West Virginia     $ 145,294     $ 120,860

       Estimated prize claims 14,974 15,783

       Accounts payable 2,086 1,581

       Other accrued liabilities 31,349 35,090

                  Total Current Liabilities 193,703 173,314
  

Deferred inflows     $ 1,374 1,374          

Net Position: 

        Net Investment in capital assets 46,652 48,047

        Unrestricted 8,547              7,152

                  Total Net Position 55,199 55,199

            Total net position, liabilities, and deferred inflows     $ 250,276    $ 229,887
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

(In Thousands)

-Unaudited-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



    CURRENT MONTH           YEAR TO DATE
    

 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2018

Lottery revenues       

         On-line games  $ 5,407 $ 4,968   $ 72,145 $ 66,891

         Instant games 10,525 8,753 95,465 81,170

         Racetrack video lottery  42,614 42,385 419,075  416,670

         Limited video lottery  34,093 32,584 325,912  304,857

         Table games 2,815       2,760       29,367 29,529       

         Historic resort 591          446          6,184 5,329        

         Sports Wagering 62           -              1,070 -                

96,107 91,896 949,218 904,446
    Less commissions
         On-line games  383 356 5,053 4,680

         Instant games 735 613  6,669 5,682

         Racetrack video lottery  20,682 20,483 219,714 217,922

         Limited video lottery  16,706 15,966 159,697  149,380

        Table games 1,194 1,171 12,457 12,520

         Historic resort 338 234 3,236 2,830

40,038 38,823 406,826 393,014

    Less on-line prizes 2,596  2,544  35,819 33,854

    Less instant prizes 7,027  5,823  63,888 53,559

    Less ticket costs 199 105 1,075 1,051

    Less vendor fees and costs 638 563 6,894 6,463

10,460 9,035 107,676 94,927

Gross profit 45,609 44,038 434,716 416,505

Administrative expenses   

        Advertising and promotions 657 305 4,407  4,265

        Wages and related benefits 887  831  8,939 8,368

        Telecommunications 86 75 759 678

        Contractual and professional 538 195 5,880 4,014

        Rental 22  9 173 130

        Depreciation and amortization  139 104  1,395 1,026

        Other administrative expenses 115 211 1,194 1,422

2,444  1,730  22,747 19,903

Other Operating Income 8,221 7,833 11,223 11,818

                                         Operating Income 51,386 50,141 423,192 408,420

Nonoperating income (expense)

        Investment income 329 132 3,016 1,077

        Distributions to municipalities and counties (668) (639) (6,388) (5,975)

        Distributions -capital reinvestment  (830)        (843)                   -           - (3,258)           - (3,376)       

        Distributions to the State of West Virginia (50,217) (48,791) (416,562) (400,146)

(51,386) (50,141) (423,192) (408,420)

                                        Net income -              -              -                  -                

  

Net position, beginning of period 55,199 53,019  55,199 53,019

     Net position, end of period $ 55,199 $ 53,019 $ 55,199 $ 53,019
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE TEN MONTH PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

-Unaudited-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:

     Cash received from customers and other sources   $ 957,124   $ 906,047

     Cash payments for:

            Personnel costs (8,939) (8,368)

            Suppliers  (12,453) (10,208)

            Other operating costs (513,951) (485,870)

                Cash provided by operating activities 421,781 401,601
 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

     Nonoperating distributions to the State of West Virginia (392,128) (413,569)

     Distributions to municipalities and counties (6,332) (5,884)

     Distributions to racetrack from racetrack cap. reinv. fund (7,890)            (6,933)

               Cash used in noncapital financing activities (406,350) (426,386)

Cash flows from capital and related financing acitivities:

     Purchases of capital assets -                     (1,562)

Cash flows from investing activities:
     Investment earnings received 2,637 1,287

             Cash provided by investing activities 2,637 1,287

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,068 (25,060)

 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 146,661 156,550

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $ 164,729 $ 131,490

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

   Operating income $ 423,192 $ 408,420

   Adjustments to reconcile operating income to

       cash provided by operating activities:

          Depreciation and amortization 1,395 1,026

          Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

              (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (3,317) (10,217)

              (Increase) decrease in inventory (45) (46)

              (Increase) decrease in other assets 25                   82

              Increase (decrease) in estimated prize claims (809) 200

              Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 505 5

              Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 835 2,131

                   Cash provided by operating activities $ 421,781 $ 401,601

 

5

WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE TEN MONTH PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

-Unaudited-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1 - LEGISLATIVE ENACTMENT 
 

The West Virginia Lottery (Lottery) was established by the State Lottery Act (Act) passed April 13, 1985, 

which created a special fund in the State Treasury designated as the “State Lottery Fund.”   The purpose of the 

Act was to establish and implement a state-operated lottery under the supervision of a state lottery commission 

(Commission) and a director.  The Commission, consisting of seven members and the Director are appointed 

by the Governor.  Under the Act, the Commission has certain powers and the duty to establish rules for 

conducting games, to select the type and number of gaming systems or games and to enter into contracts and 

agreements, and to do all acts necessary or incidental to the performance of its duties and exercise of its power 

and duty to operate the Lottery in a highly efficient manner.  The Act provides that a minimum annual average 

of 45% of the gross amount received from each lottery shall be allocated for prizes and also provides for 

certain limitations on expenses necessary for operation and administration of the Lottery.  To the extent 

available, remaining net profits are to be distributed to the State of West Virginia. As the State is able to 

impose its will over the Lottery, the Lottery is considered a component unit of the State and its financial 

statements are presented in the comprehensive annual financial report of the State as a blended proprietary 

fund component unit. 

 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 
A summary of the significant accounting policies of the Lottery is presented below.  

 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION – The West Virginia Lottery is a component unit of the State of West Virginia, 

and is accounted for as a proprietary fund special purpose government engaged in business type activities.  In 

accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial 

Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments,” and with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements are prepared 

on the accrual basis of accounting which requires recognition of revenue when earned and expenses when 

incurred.  As permitted by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, 

“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use 

Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Lottery has elected not to adopt Financial Accounting Standards Board 

(FASB) statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989 unless the GASB specifically adopts 

such FASB statements or interpretations. 

 

The Lottery is included in the State’s basic financial statements as a proprietary fund and business type 

activity using the accrual basis of accounting. Because of the Lottery’s presentation in these financial 

statements as a special purpose government engaged in business type activities, there may be differences in 

presentation of amounts reported in these financial statements and the basic financial statements of the State as 

a result of major fund determination. 

 

USE OF ESTIMATES – The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and 

develop assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and related notes to financial 

statements.  Actual results could differ from management’s estimates. 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

LOTTERY GAME OPERATIONS – The West Virginia Lottery derives its revenues from four basic types of 

lottery games: instant, on-line, video type games, and table games. The Lottery develops multiple game 

themes and prize structures to comply with its enabling legislation, including aggregate annual minimum prize 

provisions.  All bonded retailers and agents comprised principally of grocery and convenience stores serve as 

the primary distribution channel for instant and on-line lottery sales to the general public. 

 

The Lottery has contracted with a private vendor to manufacture, distribute, and provide data processing 

support for instant and on-line games. Under the terms of the agreements, the Lottery pays a percentage of 

gross revenues or gross profits for the processing and manufacture of the games. 

 

Revenue from instant games is recognized when game tickets are sold to the retailers, and the related prize 

expense is recorded based on the specific game prize structure. Instant ticket sales and related prizes do not 

include the value of free plays issued for the purpose of increasing the odds of winning a prize. 

 

Sales of on-line lottery tickets are made by licensed agents to the public with the use of computerized 

terminals.  On-line games include POWERBALL®, a multi-state “jackpot” game; Mega Millions®, a multi-

state “jackpot” game; Cash25 “lotto” game; Daily 3 and 4 “numbers” games; and Travel, a daily “keno” game.  

Revenue is recognized when the agent sells the tickets to the public.  Prize expense is recognized on the basis 

of actual drawing results. 

 

Commissions are paid to instant game retailers and on-line agents at the rate of seven percent of gross sales. A 

portion of the commission not to exceed one and one quarter percent of gross sales may be paid from 

unclaimed prize moneys.  The amount paid from unclaimed prize moneys is credited against prize costs.  In 

addition, retailers and agents are paid limited bonus incentives that include prize shares on winning tickets 

they sold and a ticket cashing bonus on winning tickets they cash.  On a weekly basis, retailers and agents 

must remit amounts due to the Lottery.  Retailers may not be able to order additional instant tickets if payment 

has not been made for the previous billing period, while an agent’s on-line terminal may be rendered inactive 

if payment is not received each week.  No one retailer or agent accounts for a significant amount of the 

Lottery’s sales or accounts receivable.  Historically credit losses have been nominal and no allowance for 

doubtful accounts receivable is considered necessary. 

 
Video lottery is a self-activated video version of lottery games which is operated by an authorized licensee.  

The board-operated games allow a player to place bets for the chance to be awarded credits which can either 

be redeemed for cash or be replayed as additional bets. The coin operated games allow a player to use coins, 

currency, or tokens to place bets for the chance to receive coin or token awards which may be redeemed for 

cash or used for replay in the coin operated games. The video lottery games’ prize structures are designed to 

award prizes, or credits, at a stipulated rate of total bets played, and prize expense is netted against total video 

credits played.  The Lottery recognizes as video lottery revenue “gross terminal income” equivalent to all 

wagers, net of related prizes.  Amounts required by statute to be paid to the private and local government 

entities are reported as commissions. WV Lottery statutes have established specific requirements for video 

lottery and imposed certain restrictions limiting  the  licensing  for  operation  of  video  lottery  games  to  

horse  and  dog  racetracks in West Virginia (subject to local county elections permitting the same), limited 

licensed retailer areas restricted for adult amusement, and licensed historic resort hotels as defined by WV 

Code. 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

The legislation further stipulates the distribution of revenues from video lottery games, and requires any video 

lottery licensee to be responsible for acquiring the necessary equipment and bearing the risk associated with 

the costs of operating and marketing the games. 
 

Table games are lotteries as each game involves consideration, the possibility of a prize, and their outcome is 

determined predominantly by chance, which the common law of West Virginia has long held are the three 

essential elements of a lottery. Table games are the exclusive intangible intellectual property of the state of 

West Virginia. Table games legislation has established specific requirements for table games and imposed 

certain restrictions limiting  the  licensing  for  operation  of  table  games  to  horse  and  dog racetracks in 

West Virginia (subject to local county elections permitting the same), and licensed historic resort hotels as 

defined by WV Code.  Each licensee as an agent of the Lottery Commission to operate West Virginia table 

games shall have written rules of play for each table game it operates which must be approved by the 

Commission. All wagers and pay-offs of winning wagers shall be made according to those rules of play. For 

the privilege of holding a table games license, there is levied a privilege tax of thirty-five percent of each 

licensee’s adjusted gross receipts for the operation of West Virginia Lottery table games. Amounts required by 

statute to be paid to private and local government entities are reported as commissions. The legislation further  

stipulates  the distribution  of  revenues  from  West Virginia table  games,  and  requires  any  licensee to be 

responsible for acquiring the necessary equipment and bearing the risk associated with the costs of operating 

and marketing the games. 
 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of interest-earning deposits in 

an external investment pool maintained by the West Virginia Board of Treasury Investments (BTI).  The BTI 

pool is a 2a-7 like pool carried at amortized cost which approximates fair value of the underlying securities. 

 

INVENTORY – Inventory consists of instant game tickets available for sale to approved Lottery retailers and is 

carried at cost as determined by the specific identification method. 
 

OTHER ASSETS – Other assets consist of deposits restricted for payment of certain Multi-State Lottery 

Association activities and prepaid expenses.  

 

CAPITAL ASSETS – The Lottery has adopted a policy of capitalizing assets with individual amounts 

exceeding $25,000. These assets include leasehold improvements and purchased equipment, comprised 

principally of technology property, office furnishings and equipment necessary to administer lottery games, 

are carried at cost.  Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method using three to ten year lives. 

 

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONS – The Lottery expenses the costs of advertising and promotions as they 

are incurred. 

  

COMPENSATED ABSENCES – The Lottery has accrued $631,080 and $573,725 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, 

respectively, for estimated obligations that may arise in connection with compensated absences for vacation at 

the current rate of employee pay.  Employees fully vest in all earned but unused vacation.  To the extent that 

accumulated sick leave is expected to be converted to benefits on termination or retirement, the Lottery 

participates in another postemployment benefits plan (see Note 16). 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

NET POSITION – Net position is presented as restricted, unrestricted and net investment in capital assets 

which represent the net book value of all property and equipment of the Lottery.  When an expense is incurred 

for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are 

applied first.  

 

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES – Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds such as 

the Lottery are revenues and expenses that result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 

and/or services. Operating revenues for the Lottery are derived from providing various types of lottery games. 

Operating expenses include commissions, prize costs, other direct costs of providing lottery games, and 

administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 

revenues and expenses. 

 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

 

At April 30, 2019 the carrying amounts of deposits (overdraft) with financial institutions were $494 thousand 

with a bank balance (overdraft) of $513 thousand. Of this balance $250 thousand was covered by federal 

depository insurance with the remaining balance collateralized with securities held by the State of West 

Virginia’s agent in the State’s name.   

 

A summary of the amount on deposit with the West Virginia Board of Treasury Investments (BTI) is as 

follows (in thousands): 

 

Deposits with financial institutions $ 494                $ 489               

Cash on hand at the Treasurer's Office 19,942           5,022            

Investments with BTI reported as cash equivalents 144,293         141,150        

$ 164,729         $ 146,661        

June 30, 2018April 30, 2019

 
 
The deposits with the BTI are part of the State of West Virginia’s consolidated investment cash liquidity pool.  

Investment income is pro-rated to the Lottery at rates specified by the BTI based on the balance of the deposits 

maintained in relation to the total deposits of all state agencies participating in the pool.  Such funds are 

available to the Lottery with overnight notice.  
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

A summary of capital asset activity for the month ended April 30, 2019 is as follows (in thousands): 

 

Capital Assets:

Construction in 

Progress $ 629         $ -         $ -            $ 629          

Buildings 48,243    -         -            48,243     

Land 1,681      -         -            1,681       
Equipment     10,999 -         -            10,999     

$ 61,552    $ -         $ -            $ 61,552     

Accumulated 

Depreciation:

Buildings $ 6,466      $ 1,027     $ -            $ 7,493       
Equipment 7,039      368        -            7,407       

$ 13,505    $ 1,395     $ -            $ 14,900     

Historical Cost

At June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions

Historical Cost

At April 30, 2019

Historical Cost

At June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions At April 30, 2019

Historical Cost

 

NOTE 5 - PARTICIPATION IN THE MULTI-STATE LOTTERY 
 

The Lottery is a member of the Multi-State Lottery (MUSL), which operates the semi-weekly 

POWERBALL® jackpot lotto game, the LOTTO AMERICA® game, and the MEGA MILLIONS® jackpot 

game on behalf of participating state lotteries.  MUSL is currently comprised of 33 member state lotteries, 

including the District of Columbia and the United States Virgin Islands. MUSL is managed by a Board of 

Directors, which is comprised of the lottery directors or their designee from each of the party states.  The 

Board of Directors’ responsibilities to administer the Multi-State Lottery Powerball, Lotto America, and Mega 

Millions games are performed by advisory committees or panels staffed by officers and independent 

contractors appointed by the board. These officers and consultants serve at the pleasure of the board and the 

board prescribes their powers, duties and qualifications. The Executive Committee carries out the budgeting 

and financing of MUSL, while the board contracts the annual independent audit. A copy of the audit may be 

obtained by writing to the Multi-State Lottery Association, 1701-48th Street, Suite 210, West Des Moines, 

Iowa 50266-6723. 

 

Each MUSL member sells game tickets through its agents and makes weekly wire transfers to the MUSL in an 

amount equivalent to the total prize pool less the amount of prizes won in each state.  Lesser prizes are paid 

directly to the winners by each member lottery. The prize pool for POWERBALL®, LOTTO AMERICA®, 

and MEGA MILLIONS® is 50% of each drawing period’s sales, with minimum jackpot levels.  The Lottery’s 

revenues and expenses from MUSL games participation for the month ended April 30, 2019 and fiscal year-to-

date is as follows: 
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NOTE 5 - PARTICIPATION IN THE MULTI-STATE LOTTERY (continued) 
 

Revenues

Powerball $ 1,903,199       $ 28,652,016     

Lotta America 450,185          4,333,958       

Mega Millions 1,242,566       21,279,466     

Total $ 3,595,950       $ 54,265,440     

Expenses (Prizes)

Powerball $ 965,118          $ 14,362,769     

Lotta America 225,160          2,167,378       

Mega Millions 621,314          10,980,706     

Total $ 1,811,592       $ 27,510,853     

Month Y-T-D

Month Y-T-D

 

MUSL places a percentage of game sales from each game in separate prize reserve funds that serve as a 

contingency reserve to protect the respective MUSL Product Groups from unforeseen prize liabilities. These 

funds can only be used at the discretion of the respective MUSL Product Group.  Once the prize reserve funds 

exceed the designated limit, the excess becomes part of that particular prize pool.  Prize reserve fund monies 

are refundable to MUSL Product Group members if the MUSL disbands or, after one year, if a member leaves 

the MUSL.  The applicable sales percentage contribution as well as the reserve fund limit for the MUSL 

games is as follows: 

 

PowerBall Lotto America Mega Millions

Required Contribution (% of sales) 2% 3% 1%

Reserve Fund Cap $125,000,000 $9,000,000 $45,000,000

 

At April 30, 2019, the Lotteries share of the prize reserve fund balances were as follows: 

Game

Powerball $ 121,374,340    $ 1,553,687    

Lotto America 2,861,735        209,245       

Mega Millions 91,304,155      1,034,093    

Total $ 215,540,230    $ 2,797,025    

Total Prize Reserve Lottery Share

 
 

Lottery prize reserves held by the MUSL are invested according to a Trust agreement the Lottery has with 

MUSL outlining investment policies. The policies restrict investments to direct obligations of the United 

States Government, perfected repurchase agreements, and obligations issued or guaranteed as to payment of  
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NOTE 5 - PARTICIPATION IN THE MULTI-STATE LOTTERY (continued) 
principal and interest by agencies or instrumentalities of the United States Government, and mutual funds of 

approved investments. The average portfolio maturity is never more than one year, except that up to one third  

of the portfolio may have an average maturity of up to two years. The maximum maturity for any one security 

does not exceed five years. 

 

The interest earned on prize reserve fund monies is used to pay MUSL operating expenses and any amounts 

over and above that are credited to an unreserved fund. The Lottery records this as interest when earned. This 

fund had a balance of $14,521,769 at April 30, 2019, of which the Lottery’s share was $1,325,326. 

 

NOTE 6 - RACETRACK VIDEO LOTTERY 

 
The Racetrack Video Lottery legislation stipulates the distribution of racetrack video lottery revenues. This 

legislation has been amended since inception to restate revenue distribution based on revenue benchmarks and 

has been amended again by HB 101 as passed during the first extraordinary session of 2014. For a complete 

summary of the impacts of HB 101, see Note 11 titled “Summary Impact of Recent Legislation.” Initially, four 

percent (4%) of gross terminal revenue is allocated for lottery administrative costs. Sixty-six percent (57%) of 

net terminal revenue (gross less 4%) is allocated in lieu of commissions to: the racetracks (46.5%); other 

private entities associated with the racing industry (8.7%); and the local county and municipal governments 

(2%). The remaining revenues (42.8%) of net terminal revenue is allocated for distribution to State as 

specified in the Racetrack Video Lottery Act or subsequent State budget, as described in the Note 11 titled 

“Nonoperating Distributions to the State of West Virginia."   

 

The first benchmark occurs when the current year net terminal revenue meets the fiscal year 1999 net terminal 

revenue. The counties and incorporated municipalities split 50/50 the two percent (2%) net terminal revenue. 

 

The second benchmark occurs when the current year gross terminal revenue meets the fiscal year 2001 gross 

terminal revenue. The four percent (4%) is no longer allocated for lottery administrative costs; instead the 

State receives this for distribution as specified by legislation or the State budget. 

 

The final benchmark occurs when the current year net terminal revenue meets the fiscal year 2001 net terminal 

revenue. At this point a 10% surcharge is applied to net terminal revenue, with 58% of the surcharge allocated 

for distribution to the State as specified by legislation or the State budget, and 42% of the surcharge allocated 

to separate capital reinvestment funds for each licensed racetrack.  

 

After deduction of the surcharge, 49% of net terminal revenue is allocated in lieu of commissions to: the 

racetracks (42%); other private entities associated with the racing industry (5%); and the local county and   

incorporated   municipality governments (2%).    
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NOTE 6 - RACETRACK VIDEO LOTTERY (continued) 
 

The remaining net terminal revenue (51%) is allocated for distribution to the State as specified in the 

Racetrack Video Lottery Act or subsequent State budget, as described in Note 11.    

 

Amounts from the capital reinvestment fund may be distributed to each racetrack if qualifying expenditures 

are made within the statutory timeframe; otherwise amounts accumulated in the fund revert to the state excess 

lottery revenue fund. 

 

The WV Lottery, along with the Ohio, Rhode Island, Maryland, and Delaware lotteries, participate in Multi-

Jurisdictional Wide Area Progressive (MWAP) video games. This allows each of the lotteries to offer a higher 

progressive jackpot than they could generate alone. MUSL manages the progressive games and charges each 

participant a MWAP contribution fee of .74% of the amount wagered. A summary of racetrack video lottery 

revenues for the month ended April 30, 2019 and fiscal year-to-date follows (in thousands): 

 

Total credits  played $          446,539 $     478,485 $          4,579,359 $       4,661,430 

Credits (prizes) won

Promotional  credits played

MWAP Contributions

Gross terminal income

Administrative costs 

Net Terminal Income

Less distribution to agents

Racetrack video lottery revenues $            21,117 $       21,120 $             186,129 $          185,767 

                 (219,714)

         (4,181,039)

              (63,695)

                     (26)

              416,670 

              (12,981)

              403,689 

            (217,922)

              (4,101,368)

                   (60,144)

                       1,228 

                   419,075 

                   (13,232)

                   405,843 

               (20,682)

       (429,417)

           (6,683)

                   -   

           42,385 

              (782)

           41,603 

         (20,483)

             (399,253)

                 (5,900)

                   1,228 

                 42,614 

                    (815)

                 41,799 

2019

Current Month

2018 2019

Year-to-Date

2018

 
A summary of video lottery revenues paid or accrued for certain state funds to conform to the legislation as 

follows (in thousands): 

 

State Lottery Fund $             5,869 $        96,476 

State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund

Capital Reinvestment Fund

       Total nonoperating distributions $           21,117 $      186,129 

                86,602 

                  3,051 

April 30, 2019 Year-to-Date

                  14,441 

                       807 

 
 

 

NOTE 7 -  LIMITED VIDEO LOTTERY 

 
Limited video lottery legislation passed in 2001 has established specific requirements imposing certain 

restrictions limiting the licensing for the operation of limited video lottery games to 9,000 terminals placed in 

licensed retailers. These licensed retailers must hold a qualifying permit for the sale and consumption on 

premises of alcohol or non-intoxicating beer. The Lottery has been charged with the administration, 

monitoring and regulation of these machines. The legislation further stipulates the distribution of revenues 

from the limited video lottery games, and requires any licensees to comply with all related rules and 

regulations of the Lottery in order to continue its retailer status. The Limited Video Lottery legislation  
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NOTE 7 - LIMITED VIDEO LOTTERY (continued) 
stipulates that 2% of gross terminal income be deposited into the state lottery fund for administrative costs. 

Then, the state share percentage of gross profit is to be transferred to the State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund. 

Such percentage is between 30 and 50 percent and is subject to change on a quarterly basis. Two percent is 

distributed to counties and incorporated municipalities in the manner prescribed by the statute. The remaining 

amount of gross profit is paid to retailers and/or operators as prescribed in the Act, and is recorded as limited 

video lottery commissions in the financial statements. Municipal and county distributions are accounted for as 

nonoperating expenses.  

 

A summary of limited video lottery revenues for the month ended April 30, 2019 and fiscal year-to-date 

follows (in thousands): 

 

Total credits  played $          432,310 $      408,037 $              4,137,396 $      3,786,532 

Credits (prizes) won

Gross terminal income $            34,093 $        32,584 $                 325,912 $         304,857 

Administrative costs 

Gross Profit

Commissions

Municipalities and Counties
Limited video lottery revenues $ 16,037           $ 15,327      $ 153,309               $ 143,405        

       (3,481,675)

              (6,097)

            298,760 

          (149,380)

              (5,975)

               (3,811,484)

                      (6,518)

                   319,394 

                  (159,697)

                      (6,388)

         (375,453)

                (652)

            31,932 

           (15,966)

                (639)

              (398,217)

                     (682)

                  33,411 

                (16,706)

                     (668)

2019 2018 2019 2018

Current Month Year-to-Date

 

 

NOTE 8 – TABLE GAMES 
 

Table Games legislation passed in 2007 per House Bill 2718.  Table games include blackjack, roulette, craps, 

and various types of poker. Each racetrack licensee is subject to a privilege tax of thirty five percent (35%) of 

adjusted gross receipts which will be deposited weekly into the Racetrack Table Games Fund. 

 

From the gross amounts deposited into the Racetrack Table Games Fund, the Commission, on a monthly basis 

shall: 

 

Retain 3% of the adjusted gross receipts for administrative expenses of which at least $100,000 and not more 

than $500,000 annually will be transferred to the Compulsive Gambling Treatment Fund.  Transfer two 

percent of the adjusted gross receipts from each licensed racetrack to the county commissions of the counties 

where racetracks with West Virginia Lottery table games are located.  Transfer three percent of the adjusted 

gross receipts from each licensed racetrack to the governing bodies of municipalities within counties where 

racetracks with West Virginia Lottery table games are located as prescribed by statute. And transfer one-half 

of one percent of the adjusted gross receipts to the governing bodies of municipalities in which a racetrack 

table games licensee is located to be divided equally among the municipalities.  The commission will 

distribute the remaining amounts, hereinafter referred to as the net amounts in the Racetrack Table Games 

Funds as follows: 
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NOTE 8 – TABLE GAMES (continued) 
 

1) Transfer four percent into a special fund to be established by the Racing Commission to be used for 

payment into the pension plan for all employees of each licensed racing association; 

 2) Transfer ten percent, to be divided and paid in equal shares, to each county commission in the    

state where table games are not located;  

 3) Transfer ten percent, to be divided and paid in equal shares, to the governing bodies of each   

municipality in the state where table games are not located; and 

 4) Transfer seventy-six percent to the State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund. 
 

The cash transferred to the State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund in the current month is included in Note 11-

Nonoperating Distributions to the State of West Virginia. The table games adjusted gross receipts for the 

month and year ended April 30, 2019 were $8,042,904 and $83,906,437, respectively. The following table 

shows the month and year totals of the privilege tax and the accrued distributions (in thousands) to be 

transferred in the subsequent month: 

 

 

Table Games Privilege Tax $         2,815 $      2,760 $            29,367 $       29,529 

Interest on Table Games Fund

Administrative costs 

     Total Available for Distribution 

Less Distributions:

Racetrack Purse Funds

Thoroughbred & Greyhound Development Funds

Racing Association Pension Plan

Municipalities/ Counties

     Total Distributions 1,194       1,171     12,457          12,520     

          Excess Lottery Fund $ 1,385       $ 1,357     $ 14,448          $ 14,512     

                 34 

          27,032 

            1,898 

            1,519 

(2,531)          
                      55 

               26,905 

                 1,888 

                 1,510 

(2,517)               
                  5 

           2,528 

              177 

              142 

(237)            
                   5 

            2,579 

               181 

               145 

(241)             

2019 2018

Current Month

2019

Year-to-Date

2018

               744 

8,359           

71                 

797               782             

70               741                   

8,318                
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NOTE 9 – HISTORIC RESORT HOTEL 
In 2009, the Legislature passed Senate Bill 575 which permits video lottery and table games at a licensed 

historic resort hotel which is defined as “a resort hotel registered with the United States Department of the 

Interior as a national historic landmark in its National Registry of Historic Places having not fewer than five 

hundred guest rooms under common ownership and having substantial recreational guest amenities in addition 

to the gaming facility.” 
 

Historic Resort Video Lottery 
 

According to Senate Bill 575, thirty six percent (36%) of gross terminal income is allocated to Historic Resort 

Hotel Fund and seventeen percent (17%) of gross terminal income is allocated to the Human Resource Benefit  

Fund.  The remaining forty-seven percent (47%) of gross terminal income is then subject to a ten percent  

(10%) surcharge which is allocated to separate capital reinvestment funds for each licensed historic resort 

hotel.  The remaining forty-two and three-tenths percent (42.3%) of gross terminal income is retained by the 

historic resort hotel.  

 

A summary of historic resort hotel video lottery revenues for the month ended April 30, 2019 and fiscal year-

to-date follows (in thousands): 

 

Total credits played $ 6,333          $ 5,109     $ 71,672           $ 63,592      

Credits (prizes) won (5,699)         (4,741)   (66,346)          (59,080)    

Promotional credits played (137)            (49)        (912)               (602)         

Gross terminal income 497             319        4,414             3,910        

Capital reinvestment (23)              (15)        (207)               (184)         

Excess Lottery Fund (5)                (3)          (40)                 (35)           

Administrative costs (27)              (17)        (238)               (211)         

Hotel commissions (210)            (135)      (1,867)            (1,654)      

Net terminal income 232             149        2,062             1,826        

Historic Resort Hotel Fund 147             95          1,312             1,161        

Human Resource Benefit Fund 85               54          750                665           

Current Month

2019 2018

Year-to-Date

2019 2018
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NOTE 9 – HISTORIC RESORT HOTEL (continued) 
Historic Resort Table Games 
 

Each historic resort hotel licensee is subject to a privilege tax of thirty five percent (35%) of adjusted gross 

receipts, of which thirty percent (30%) is deposited directly into the Historic Resort Hotel Fund and five 

percent (5%) is deposited directly into the Human Resource Benefit Fund.  The historic resort hotel table 

games adjusted gross receipts for the month and year ended April 30, 2019 were $269,574 and $5,058,344, 

respectively.   
 

The following table shows the month and fiscal year -to- date totals of the privilege tax and the accrued 

distributions (in thousands) to be transferred in the subsequent month:  
 

Table games privilege tax $ 94         $ 127    $ 1,770         $ 1,419    

Administrative Costs (12)       (16)    (228)           (182)     

Total Available for Distribution 82         111    1,542         1,237    

Historic Resort Hotel Fund 69         93      1,289         1,034    

Human Resource Benefit Fund 13         18      253            203       

2019 2018 2019 2018

 

Historic Resort Hotel Fund 
 

Of the monies deposited into the Historic Resort Hotel Fund, fifteen percent (15%) is allocated for lottery 

administrative costs.  The remaining Historic Resort Hotel Fund net income (gross deposits less 15%) is 

distributed as follows: 
 

1) Eighty-six percent (86%) is paid to the State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund; 

2) Four percent (4%) is paid to the county where the gaming facility is located; 

3) Two and one-half percent (2.5%) is paid to the municipality where the gaming facility is located as 

prescribed by statute; 

4) Two and one-half percent (2.5%) is divided and paid in equal shares to the remaining municipalities 

in the county where the gaming facility is located; 

5) Two and one-half percent (2.5%) is divided and paid in equal shares, to each county commission in 

the state where the gaming facility is not located; 

6) Two and one-half percent (2.5%) is divided and paid in equal shares, to each municipality in the 

state not already receiving a distribution as described in item five (5) or item six (6) above. 
 

A summary of Historic Resort Hotel Fund revenues and related distributions is as follows (in thousands): 

Historic Resort Hotel Video Lottery $ 147            $ 1,312    

Historic Resort Table Games

Interest on Historic Resort Hotel Fund

Historic Resort Hotel Fund Net Income

Municipalities/ Counties

Excess Lottery Fund 

Total Distributions $ 217            $ 2,610    

366            

2,244         

Year-to-Date

1,289         

9                

2,610         

30                   

187                 

Current Month

69                   

1                     

217                 
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NOTE 10– SPORTS WAGERING  

 

Sports Wagering legislation passed in 2018 per Senate Bill 415.  Each racetrack and historic resort hotel 

licensee is subject to a privilege tax of ten percent (10%) of adjusted gross wagering receipts which will 

be deposited weekly into the Sports Wagering Fund. 

 

From the privilege tax deposited into the Sports Wagering Fund, the Commission, on a monthly basis 

shall: 

 

Retain 15% for administrative expenses of which any surplus in excess of $250,000 shall be reported to 

the Joint Committee on Government and Finance and remitted to the State Treasurer.   

 

After the reduction for administrative expenses, the net profit shall be deposited into the State Lottery 

Fund until a total of $15 million is deposited.  The remainder of net profit shall be deposited into the 

Public Employees Insurance Agency Financial Stability Fund.  

 

The Sports Wagering adjusted gross wagering receipts for the month and year-to-date periods ended  

April 30, 2019 were $624,169 and $10,700,054, respectively. The following table shows the month and 

year-to-date totals of the privilege tax and the accrued distributions (in thousands) to be transferred in the 

subsequent month: 

 
 

 

 

Sports Wagering Privilege Tax $ 62         $ -    $ 1,070         $ -        

Interest on Sports Waging Fund -       -    -             -        

Administrative Costs (9)         -    (160)           -        

Total Available for Distribution 53         -    910            -        

Current Month

2019 2018

Year-to-Date

2019 2018
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NOTE 11-  NONOPERATING DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA 
 

The Lottery periodically distributes surplus funds, exclusive of amounts incurred and derived from limited 

video lottery and a portion of racetrack video lottery funds, to the State of West Virginia in accordance with 

the legislation.  For the year ending June 30, 2019 the State Legislature budgeted $129,298,650 of estimated 

profits of the Lottery for distributions to designated special revenue accounts of the State of West Virginia. 

With regard to the State Lottery Fund, legislation stipulates that debt service payments be given a priority over 

all other transfers in instances where estimated profits are not sufficient to provide for payment of all 

appropriated distributions. Debt service payments of $1,800,000, $1,000,000, and $500,000 per month for the 

first ten months of each fiscal year currently have such priority. Transfers made pursuant to the State Excess 

Lottery Revenue Fund have similar requirements; currently payments are $5,300,000 per month for the first 

ten months of each fiscal year.  In addition, Legislation provides that, if in any month, there is a shortage of  
funds in the State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund to make debt service payments, the necessary amount shall be 

 transferred from the State Lottery Fund to cover such shortfall, after the State Lottery Fund debt service 

payments have been made. Repayments to the State Lottery Fund are required to be made in subsequent 

months as funds become available. For the month ended April 30, 2019 the Lottery has accrued additional 

distributions of $145,294,090. The Lottery is a non-appropriated state agency and therefore does not have a 

legally adopted annual budget.  

 

A summary of the cash distributions made to certain state agencies to conform to the legislation follows (in 

thousands):  

 
 

BUDGETARY DISTRIBUTIONS

  State Lottery Fund:

      Community and Technical College $               500 $          4,997 

      Bureau of Senior Services

      Department of Education

      Library Commission

      Higher Education-Policy Commission

      Tourism 

      Natural Resources

      Division of Culture & History

      Department of Education & Arts

      Educational Broadcast Authority

      Economic Development Authority

      School Building Authority

           Total State Lottery Fund $          10,658 $      136,657 

                       999 

             45,169 

             18,527 

             11,454 

               7,084 

               6,550 

                    7,359                7,359 

April 30, 2019 Year-to-Date

                    1,800              18,000 

               3,196 

               4,078 

                  250 

               9,993 
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NOTE 12 – LEASES 

 
The Lottery leases, under a cancelable operating lease, its office and warehouse facilities.   The Lottery   also   

leases various office equipment under agreements considered to be cancelable operating leases.  Rental 

expense for the fiscal year-to-date ended April 30, 2019 and April 30, 2018 approximated $172,975 and 

$129,932 respectively. 

 

The Lottery leases office space under the terms of a non-cancellable operating lease to various tenants.  Rental 

revenues for the fiscal year-to-date ended April 30, 2019 and April 30, 2018 approximated $854,504 and 

$860,651 respectively. 

State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund:

Economic Development Fund $          2,102 $          21,020 

Higher Education Improvement Fund

General Purpose Account

Higher Education Improvement Fund

State Park Improvement Fund

School Building Authority

Refundable Credit

WV Racing Commission

WV Department of Health and Human Resources 

Teacher's Retirement Savings

Division of Human Services            8,000 

WV Lottery Statutory Transfers          43,073 

General Revenue                  -   

Office of Technology        18,425          18,425 

Excess Lottery Surplus

West Va. Infrastructure Council

Total State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund $        51,201 $        255,075 

Total Budgetary distributions: $ 61,859       $ 391,732       

           Veterans Instant Ticket Fund $ 49              $ 396              

Total nonoperating distributions to the

           State of West Virginia (cash basis) $ 61,908       $ 392,128       

Accrued nonoperating distributions, beginning

Accrued nonoperating distributions, end

Sta

$ 50,217       $ 416,562       

                 1,722 

              1,899 

                    -   

              6,186 

                 279 

              6,985 

(156,985)        

145,294         

(120,860)           

145,294             

              1,500 

              9,077 

              4,050 

                 698 

                 3,155 

               15,000 

               55,970 

               24,971 

                 4,305 

               18,989 

                       -   

               40,445 
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NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS 

 
For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 the Lottery Commission has not designated any unexpended 

administrative funds for the acquisition of capital assets. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, $9,414,970 and 

$9,460,433, respectively, are included in unrestricted net position and net investment in capital assets for this 

purpose. 
 

 NOTE 14 -  RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 

All full-time Lottery employees are eligible to participate in the State of West Virginia Public Employees’ 

Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement 

system.  The PERS is one of several plans administered by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement 

(CPRB) under the direction of its Board of Trustees, which consists of the Governor, State Auditor, State 

Treasurer, Secretary of the Department of Administration, and nine members appointed by the Governor.  

CPRB prepares separately issued financial statements covering all retirement systems it administers, which 

can be obtained from Consolidated Public Retirement Board, 4101 MacCorkle Ave. S.E., Charleston, West 

Virginia 25304-1636.   
 

Employees who retire at or after age sixty with five or more years of contributory service or who retire at or 

after age fifty-five and have completed twenty-five years of credited service with age and credited service 

equal to eighty or greater are eligible for retirement benefits as established by State statute.  Retirement 

benefits are payable monthly for life, in the form of a straight-line annuity equal to two percent of the 

employee’s average annual salary from the highest 36 consecutive months within the last 10 years of 

employment, multiplied by the number of years of the employee’s credited service at the time of retirement.  

 

Covered employees hired prior to July 1, 2015 are required to contribute 4.5% of their salary to the PERS. 

Covered employees hired on or after July 1, 2015 will contribute 6.0% of their salary to the PERS Tier II.   

The Lottery is required to contribute 13.5% of covered employees’ salaries to the PERS.  The required 

employee and employer contribution percentages have been established and changed from time to time by 

action of the State Legislature. The required contributions are not actuarially determined; however, actuarial 

valuations are performed to assist the Legislature in determining appropriate contributions. The Lottery and 

employee contributions, for the month ending April 30, 2019 and fiscal year-to-date are as follows (in 

thousands): 
 

Employee contributions $ 27           $ 309       

Lottery contributions 135         748       

Total contributions $ 162         $ 1,057    

April 30, 2019 Year-to-Date
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NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Lottery is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, or damage to, and destruction of assets; 

errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The Lottery participates in several risk 

management programs administered by the State of West Virginia.  Each of these risk pools has issued 

separate audited financial reports on their operations.  Those reports include the required supplementary  

information concerning the reconciliation of claims liabilities by type of contract and ten-year claim 

development information. Complete financial statements of the individual insurance enterprise funds can be 

obtained directly from their respective administrative offices.  
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
 

The Lottery carries workers compensation insurance coverage through a commercial insurance carrier. The 

commercial insurance carrier is paid a monthly rated premium to provide compensation for injuries sustained 

in the course of employment. 

 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ INSURANCE AGENCY (PEIA) 

 
The Lottery participates in the Public Employees’ Insurance Agency which provides an employee benefit 

insurance program to employees.  PEIA was established by the State of West Virginia for State agencies, 

institutions of higher education, Boards of Education and component units of the State.  In addition, local 

governmental entities and certain charitable and public service organizations may request to be covered by 

PEIA.  PEIA provides a base employee benefit insurance program which includes hospital, surgical, major 

medical, prescription drug and basic life and accidental death.  Underwriting and rate setting policies are 

established by PEIA.  The cost of all coverage as determined by PEIA shall be paid by the participants.  

Premiums are established by PEIA and are paid monthly, and are dependent upon, among other things,  
coverage required, number of dependents, state vs. non state employees and active employees vs. retired  

employees and level of compensation. Coverage under these programs is limited to $1 million lifetime for 

health and $10,000 of life insurance coverage.   

 

The PEIA risk pool retains all risks for the health and prescription features of its indemnity plan.  PEIA has 

fully transferred the risks of coverage to the Managed Care Organization (MCO) Plan to the plan provider, and 

has transferred the risks of the life insurance coverage to a third party insurer.  PEIA presently charges 

equivalent premiums for participants in either the indemnity plan or the MCO Plan.  Altogether, PEIA insures 

approximately 205,000 individuals, including participants and dependents. 
 

BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT (BRIM) 
 

The Lottery participates in the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM), a common 

risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for all State agencies, 

component units, and other local governmental agencies who wish to participate.  The Lottery pays an annual 

premium to BRIM for its general insurance coverage.  Fund underwriting and rate setting policies are 

established by BRIM.  The cost of all coverage as determined by BRIM shall be paid by the participants.  The 

BRIM risk pool retains the risk of the first $1 million per property event and purchases excess insurance on 

losses above that level.  Excess coverage, through an outside insurer under this program is limited to $200 

million per event, subject to limits on certain property. BRIM has $1 million per occurrence coverage 

maximum on all third-party liability claims. 
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NOTE 16– OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)  
 

The Lottery participates in the West Virginia Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB Plan) of the West 

Virginia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (Trust), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 

postemployment healthcare plan administered by the West Virginia Public Employee Insurance Agency 

(WVPEIA).  The OPEB Plan provides retiree post-employment health care benefits for participating state and 

local government employers.  The provisions of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended (the Code), 

assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the WVPEIA board of trustees.  The 

WVPEIA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 

supplementary information for the OPEB Plan.  That report may be obtained by writing to Public Employees 

Insurance Agency, 601 57th Street, South East, Suite 2, Charleston, West Virginia, or by calling 1-888-680-

7342.    
 

Funding Policy 
 

The Code requires the OPEB Plan bill the participating employers 100% of the annual required contribution 

(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.  The 

ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each 

year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to 

exceed thirty years.  State of West Virginia plan employers are billed per active health policy per month. 
 

The ARC rate is $357 and $429 per employee per month for the years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016 

respectively.  Through June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Lottery has paid premiums of $288,942 and $284,421.    

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Lottery has recorded a liability of $5,206,989 and $4,990,361 on its balance 

sheet for OPEB. 



 
 Actual Projected Actual Projected

Gross Revenues

         Instant games 10,525 7,500 95,464 75,000

         On-line games  5,407 5,033 72,146 50,333

         Racetrack video lottery  42,613 36,939 419,176 368,393

         Limited video lottery  34,093 29,767 325,912 291,435

         Racetrack table games 2,815 2,449 29,367 24,404

         Historic resort 591 360 6,184 3,673

         Sports wagering 62 -                 1,032 -            

           Total gross revenues 96,106 82,048  949,281 813,238

                                                                                                            
Net Revenues - Lottery Fund and Excess Lottery Fund    

    Lottery Fund
         Instant games  1,416 870 11,447 8,705

         On-line games  1,697 1,445  21,415 14,445

         Racetrack Video Lottery 5,908 4,744  96,911 86,141

         Sports wagering 53 -                 1,414 -            

           Total Lottery Fund net nevenues 9,074 7,059 131,187 109,291

    Excess Lottery Fund

         Racetrack Video Lottery 14,531 13,010  87,079 74,235

         Limited Video Lottery 16,188 14,002  154,935 137,091

         Limited Video Lottery Fees 8,116 8,500               9,099 8,500        

         Racetrack table games 1,385 1,201 14,449 11,971

         Historic resort 191 116 2,283 1,345

           Total Excess Lottery Fund Net Revenues 40,411 36,829 267,845 233,142

Total Net Revenues 49,485 43,888 399,032 342,433

24

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND NET REVENUES OF THE

LOTTERY FUND AND EXCESS LOTTERY FUND

(In Thousands)

Current Month FISCAL YEAR

FOR THE SIX MONTH PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2019
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WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE 
Office of the Legislative Auditor 

 
Budget Division                                                                                                                                                      

Building 1, Room 314-West Wing                                                 304-347-4870                                               

1900 Kanawha Blvd. East                                                                                                                                    

Charleston, WV  25305-0590 
 

 

 

Memorandum 

 

To:     Honorable Chairmen and Members of the Joint Committee on                                      

        Government and Finance 

 

From:   William Spencer, C.P.A. 

        Director, Budget Division 

        Legislative Auditor’s Office 

          

Date:   July 3, 2019 

 

Re:     Status of General Revenue Fund and State Road Fund as of                                            

   June 30, 2019 (FY 19)                                    

    

We have reviewed the cash flow of the West Virginia general revenue fund as 

of June 30, 2019 which is the final month of the fiscal year. The status of 

the fund collections for the month is as follows: 

 

The net collections were 100% of the estimate for the fiscal year. Total 

collections were $4.3 million above the estimate for the fiscal year. 

 

Personal Income Tax collections were $4.8 million above the estimate for 

the fiscal year.  

 

Consumer sales and use tax collections were $2.2 million above the estimate 

for the year. 

 

Severance Tax was $11.5 million above the estimate for the fiscal year. 
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Corporate Income and Business Franchise Tax collections were $8 million 

below the estimate for the fiscal year.  

 

State Road Fund 

 

The state road fund collections were 104% of the estimate for the fiscal 

year. Total collections were $36.2 million above the estimate for the fiscal 

year. 

 

Rainy Day and Personal Income Tax Reserve * 
 

Revenue Shortfall Reserve Fund A (Rainy Day Fund) had a cash balance of 

$298,481,420.30 as of June 30, 2019. 

 

Balance July 1, 2018    268,964,086.07 

Loan-General Revenue Fund 7-1-18     60,000,000.00 

Loan Payment 8-31-18    (60,000,000.00) 

Fiscal year 18 surplus     18,066,528.88 

Earnings     11,450,805.35 

Balance June 30, 2019    298,481,420.30 

 

 

 

Revenue Shortfall Reserve Fund B (Tobacco Settlement Monies) had a cash 

balance of $454,257,811.92 as of June 30, 2019. 

 

Balance July 1, 2018     440,709,603.60 

Earnings      13,548,208.32 

Balance June 30, 2019     454,257,811.92 

 

 

 

The Personal Income Tax Reserve Fund had a $11 million cash balance as of 

June 30, 2019. 

 

Balance July 1, 2018     11,000,000.00 

Balance June 30, 2019     11,000,000.00 
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WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE 

Office of the Legislative Auditor 

 
Budget Division                                                                                                                                                      

Building 1, Room 314-West Wing 

1900 Kanawha Blvd. East                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

Charleston, WV  25305-0590 

304-347-4870 

 

 

 

To:    Honorable Chairmen and Members of the Joint Committee on                                                         

       Government and Finance 

 

From:  William Spencer, C.P.A. 

       Director Budget Division 

       Legislative Auditor's Office   

 

Date:  July 16, 2019 

 

Re:    West Virginia Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund 

 

We have reviewed the June 30, 2019 monthly report of the 

Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund we received from WorkForce 

West Virginia.  

 

As of June 30, 2019 of fiscal year 2018-2019, the trust fund cash 

flow was as follows: 

 

       
 
Trust Fund Beginning Cash Balance 7-1-2018 

 
$    137,218,046.89 

 
Receipts July 1, 2018 thru June 30, 2019 

 
$    233,712,943.70 

 
Disbursements July 1, 2018 thru June 30, 

2019 

 
$    165,169,619.77 

 
Balance June 30, 2019 

 
$    205,761,370.82 

 

 

 



 

ITEMS OF NOTE: 

 

Regular benefits paid for July – June 2019 were $ 18 million more 

than July - June 2018. 

 

Federal emergency benefits totaled -$35 thousand for July - June 

2019.  For July - June 2018, federal emergency benefits totaled -

$48 thousand.   

 

Total disbursements were $ 18 million more in July - June 2019 

than the preceding July - June 2018. 

 

Receipts as of July - June 2019, were $ 17.7 million more than in 

July - June 2018. Overall ending trust fund balance was $68.5 

million higher on June 30, 2019 than on June 30, 2018.  

 

Seasonally adjusted unemployment rates for June 2019 were 4.7 

percent for West Virginia and 3.7 percent nationally. 

 
Since June 2018, employment has increased by 12,000.  Employment 

gains included 3,000 in educational and health services, 8,100 in 

construction, 1,600 in manufacturing, 1,600 in leisure and 

hospitality, 600 in trade, transportation, and utilities, 200 in 

financial activities, and 300 in mining and logging.  Employment 

declines included 400 in other services, 1,300 in professional and 

business services, 1,100 in government, and 600 in information.   



~ 

WorkForce 
WEST VIRGINIA 

William Spencer 
Budget Division 
Office of the Legislative Auditor 
Building 1, Room 332-West Wing 
1900 Kanawha Boulevard East 
Charleston, WV 25305-0590 

RE: Monthly Status Report 

Dear Mr. Spencer: 

Scott A. Adkins, Acting Commissioner 

July 10, 2019 

Please find attached, the Monthly Status Report for the Joint Committee on Government and Finance, 
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund for the month of June 2019. 

If you have any questions or need any additional information, please feel free to contact Brett Sansom at 304-558-
2631 or Brett.E.Sansom@wv.gov. 

SAA/gew 

Enclosure 

pc: Jim Justice 

Sincerely, 

Scott A. Adkins 
Acting Commissioner 

1900 Kanawha Blvd. East* Building 3 Suite 300 *Charleston, WV 25305 

An agency of the Department of Commerce 
An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

www.workforcewv.org 
,.,..-. 

,,, ~''P AmencanJobCenter· 0etwor< 
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112 California Avenue 
Charleston, WV 25305 

Add  li  3 
 

 

 

Benefits and Technical Support Section    Unemployment Compensation Division 
1900 Kanawha Blvd., East  Building 3, Room 300     Charleston, West Virginia 25305 

Telephone: (304) 558-3309    Fax: (304) 558-3252 
 

UC TRUST FUND PROJECTIONS – 2019 
July 15, 2019 

 

Month Receipts Disbursements Trust Fund Balance 
2018       

Balance 1/1/2018      $                82,800,186  
January  $             15,854,972   $             18,180,779   $                80,474,379  
February  $               8,964,249   $             16,063,060   $                73,375,568  
March  $               1,556,203   $             12,890,572   $                62,041,199  
April  $             67,692,592   $             14,518,039   $              115,215,752  
May  $             39,734,526   $             10,586,743   $              144,363,535  
June  $               1,857,766   $               9,003,254   $              137,218,047  
July  $             31,386,942   $             11,838,195   $              156,766,794  
August  $             20,196,226   $               9,156,337   $              167,806,683  
September  $               2,019,468   $               7,981,721   $              161,844,430  
October  $             26,381,452   $               8,432,038   $              179,793,844  
November  $             10,958,388   $               9,618,313   $              181,133,919  
December  $               2,114,666   $             13,470,105   $              169,778,480  
        
Totals - 2018  $           228,717,450   $           141,739,156   $              169,778,480  
    

2019       
January  $             18,647,223   $             18,646,454   $              169,779,249  
February  $               9,889,316   $             20,023,154   $              159,645,411  
March  $               2,774,046   $             19,785,639   $              142,633,818  
April  $             72,098,812   $             18,777,789   $              195,954,841  
May  $             34,807,294   $             15,044,255   $              215,717,880  
June  $               2,439,110   $             12,395,619   $              205,761,371  
July  $             31,343,000   $             16,110,600   $              220,993,771  
August  $             20,167,951   $             12,460,859   $              228,700,863  
September  $               2,016,641   $             10,862,324   $              219,855,180  
October  $             26,344,518   $             11,475,161   $              234,724,537  
November  $             10,943,046   $             13,089,562   $              232,578,021  
December  $               2,111,705   $             18,331,466   $              216,358,260  
        
Totals - 2019  $           233,582,662   $           187,002,882   $              216,358,260  

 





PEIA 
July Interim Talking Points 

 
 
 
 
 PEIA and RHBT preliminary financial results for 

May 2019 are available for your review.   
 

 PEIA year to date statements indicate PEIA is ahead 
of plan by $38 million.  This is primarily due to lower 
than forecast prescription drug claim expenses.  

 
 RHBT year to date statements indicate RHBT is 

behind plan by $7 million.  This is attributable to 
lower than forecast investment income. 

 
 The 2019 year-end reserve for the State Fund and 

non-State Fund is projected to be $167 and $52 
million respectively. 

 
 These reserve levels represent 24% and 37% of the 

respective funds’ expenses.  The required reserve for 
the State Fund is 14% of expenses.   

 
 
 
 
 
 









West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management 
Unaudited Statement of Net Position and  

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2019 

 
Talking Points for July 2019 Joint Committee on Government and Finance 

 

 

 
1. Premium Revenue thru May reflects the premiums earned for the first eleven 

months of the fiscal year. Premium revenue has increased by about $4.2 million 
for FY’19 based on the actuarially projected increase in loss pics for the current 
year. 

 
2. Claims Expense reflects all claims payments made thru May plus reserve 

increases. Net claims payments for the current fiscal year to date are 
approximately the same as last year. Claims reserves and IBNR provisions have 
increased claims expense by $10.1 million for the current year vs. a $1.8 
increase last year. The net result is claims expense is $8.3 million higher for the 
current year.  

  
3. Investment Income for fiscal year 2019 reflects net earnings of $14.9 million for 

the first eleven months and is $7.4 million more than last year due to much better 
overall returns on fixed income holdings this fiscal year. 
 

4. BRIM has no un-funded liability and continues to pursue pro-active loss control 
initiatives. 
 
 
  

 
   



For the Eleven Months Ended May 31st

2019 2018
(In Thousands)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $           33,242 28,964$        
Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee 222,498 200,783
Receivabales 7,265 8,695
Prepaid insurance 521 558
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 17,053 13,918
Premiums due from other entities 878 643

Total current assets 281,457 253,562        

Noncurrent assets:
Equity position in internal investments pools 97,990 96,458
Restricted investments 56,589 55,704

Total noncurrent assets 154,579 152,162        
Total assets 436,036 405,724        

Deferred Outflows of Resources 438 458
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB 44 0

Liabilities 
Current liabilities:
Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense 50,453 47,713

Unearned premiums 16,724 16,538
Agent commissions payable 1,224 990

Claims Payable 03 459
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,466 3,464

Total current liabilities 71,870 69,164          

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense net of current portion 132,075 124,709
Compensated absences 122 107
Net pension liability 331 766
Total noncurrent liabilities 132,528 125,582        
Total liabilities 204,398 194,746        

Deferred Inflows of Resources 330 37
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB 73 0
Net position:

Restricted by State code for  mine subsidence coverage 66,866 61,063
Unrestricted 149,745 138,265
 Net Assets (Deficiency) 15,106 12,070

Net position $         231,717 211,398$      

Unaudited

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Net Position



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Eleven Months Ended May 31st

2019 2018
(In Thousands)

$           76,775 72,436$     
(6,106) (5,960)
70,669 66,476       

66,316 58,049
4,171 3,880

70,487 61,929       

182 4,547 

14,924 7,523

14,924 7,523 
15,106 12,070 

216,611 199,328     

$         231,717 211,398$   

Operating revenues
Premiums   
Less coverage/reinsurance programs 
Net operating revenues

Operating expenses
Claims and claims adjustment expense 
General and administrative
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues
Investment income

Net nonoperating revenues
Changes in net position

Total net position, beginning of year      

Total net position, end of period

Unaudited
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Department of Administration Real Estate Division Leasing Report 
For the period of June 1 - 30, 2019 

 
 
 
 
There are 26 leasing changes for this period and they are as follows: 
 

• 2 – New Contract of Lease – DOA Owned 
• 4 – New Contract of Lease  
• 5 – Straight Renewal – DOA Owned  
• 9 – Straight Renewal 
• 4 – Renewal with Increase in Rent 
• 1 –Increase in Square Feet 
• 1 – Cancellation  
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Department of Administration Real Estate Division Leasing Report 
For the period of June 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019 

 
 

NEW CONTRACT OF LEASE – DOA OWNED  
 
REAL ESTATE DIVISION 
 
RED-008-622  New Contract of Lease for 3 years and 1 month consisting of 360 square feet of guard 
house space at the annual per square foot rate of $5.00, annual cost $1,800.00, full service, known as the 
Piedmont Street Guard House, in the City of Charleston, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
 
RED-009-622  New Contract of Lease for 3 years and 1 month consisting of 116 square feet of guard 
house space at the annual per square foot rate of $5.00, annual cost $580.00, full service, known as the 
Greenbrier Street Guard House, in the City of Charleston, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
 
NEW CONTRACT OF LEASE  
 
WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES GRIEVANCE BOARD  
 
EGB-016  New Contract of Lease for 10 years consisting of 5,352 square feet of office space at the 
annual per square foot rate of $13.50 for years one through five, annual cost $72,252.00 and $14.00 for 
years six through ten, annual cost $74,928, full service, 1701 5th Avenue, in the City of Charleston, 
Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

DEP-192  New Contract of Lease for 10 years consisting of 960 square feet of air monitoring space at the 
annual rate of $1.00, Mahan Lane, in the City of Follansbee, Brooke County, West Virginia. 
 
WEST VIRGINIA STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 
 
SAO-006  New Contract of Lease for 3 years consisting of 14,400 square feet of office/warehouse space 
at the annual per square foot rate of $3.83, annual cost $55,152.00, 4916 Kanawha Boulevard, in the City 
of Rand, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
 
STATE TREASURER’S OFFICE 
 
STO-004  New Contract of Lease for 11 years consisting of 17,000 square feet of office/warehouse space 
at the annual per square foot rate of $6.00, annual cost $102,000.00, 7300 MacCorkle Avenue, in the City 
of Charleston, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
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STRAIGHT RENEWAL – DOA OWNED 
 
NORTHERN PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

NPW-001  Renewal for 1 year consisting of 776 square feet of office space at the current annual per 
square foot rate of $17.00, annual cost $13,192.00, full service, Building #34, 100 Municipal Plaza, in the 
City of Weirton, Hancock County, West Virginia. 
 
DIVISION OF REHABILITATION SERVICES 
 
DRS-128  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 12,786 square feet of office and storage space at the current 
annual per square foot rate of $19.00, annual cost $242,934.00, full service, Building #53, 153 West Main 
Street, in the City of Clarksburg, Harrison County, West Virginia. 
 
DRS-120  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 4,285 square feet of office space at the current annual per 
square foot rate of $12.00, annual cost $51,420.00, full service, Building #55, 130 Stratton Street, in the 
City of Logan, Logan County, West Virginia. 
 
PURCHASING DIVISION SURPLUS PROPERTY 
 
SRP-001  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 29,217 square feet of office, storage, and warehouse space 
at the current monthly rate of $4,525.33, annual cost $54,303.96, Building #27, 2700 Charles Avenue, in 
the City of Dunbar, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
 
PROSECUTING ATTORNEYS INSTITUTE 
 
PAI-003  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 2,075 square feet of office and storage space at the current 
annual per square foot rate of $12.72, annual cost $26,400.00, full service, Building #86, 1124 Smith 
Street, in the City of Charleston, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
 
STRAIGHT RENEWAL 
 
COAL HERITAGE HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 

CHH-001  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 450 square feet of storage space at the current monthly rate 
$127.05, annual cost $1,524.60, full service, 704 Bland Street, in the City of Bluefield, Mercer County, 
West Virginia. 
 
WORKFORCE WEST VIRGINIA 
 
WWV-017  Renewal for 1 year consisting of 224 square feet of office space at the current monthly rate of 
$750.00, annual cost $9,000, full service, 404 Main Street, in the City of Point Pleasant, Mason County, 
West Virginia. 
 
WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY 

LOT-007  Renewal for 1 year consisting of 120 square feet of office space at the current monthly rate of 
$80.00, annual cost $960.00, full service, located at Hollywood Casino at Charles Town Races, Charles 
Town, Jefferson County, West Virginia. 
 
CONSOLIDATED PUBLIC RETIRMENT BOARD 
 
CPR-006 Renewal for 2 years and 11 months consisting of 3,000 square feet of office space at the 
current annual per square foot rate of $10.95, annual cost $32,850.00, 4112 MacCorkle Avenue, 
Southeast, in the City of Charleston, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
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STRAIGHT RENEWAL - CONTINUED 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

DEP-127  Renewal for 5 years consisting of 300 square feet of air monitoring space at the current annual 
rate of $1.00 dollar located at the Morgantown Airport, in the City of Morgantown, Monongalia County, 
West Virginia. 
 
DIVISION OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION, BUREAU OF JUVENILE SERVICES 
 
BJS-003  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 12,266 square feet of office/classroom space at the current 
annual per square foot rate of $10.49, annual cost $128,670.34, full service, 1121 Quarrier Street, in the 
City of Charleston, Kanawha County, West Virginia. 
 
BJS-033  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 3,324 square feet of office space at the current annual per 
square foot rate of $10.00, annual cost $33,240.00, full service without janitorial, 113 Randolph Street, in 
the City of Beckley, Raleigh County, West Virginia. 
 
WEST VIRGINIA STATE POLICE 
 
PSA-012  Renewal for 5 years consisting of a tract of land for a communications tower at the current 
annual rate of $1,200.00, annual cost $1,200.00, Millers Fork in Stonewall District, in Wayne County, 
West Virginia. 
 
PSA-078  Renewal for 5 years consisting of 2,670 square feet of office space at the current annual per 
square foot rate of $3.00, annual cost $8,010.00, Lick Creek Road, in the City of Danville, Boone County, 
West Virginia. 
 
RENEWAL WITH INCREASE IN RENT 

WEST VIRGINIA CONSERVATION AGENCY 

SCC-008  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 3,043 of office space with an increase in the annual per 
square foot rate from $8.37 to $9.18, annual cost $27,934.74, full service, 2361 Northwestern, in the 
Romney, Hampshire County, West Virginia. 
 
DIVISION OF FORESTRY 
 
FOR-094 Renewal for 1 year consisting of 156 square feet of office space with an increase in the annual 
monthly rate from $250.00 to $300.00, full service 89 Richard D. Minnich Drive, in the City of Sutton, 
Braxton County, West Virginia. 
 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES 

HHR-233  Renewal for 5 years consisting of 14,718 square feet of office space with an increase in the 
annual per square foot rate from $6.25 to $6.50 in years 1 and 2 and an increase from $6.50 to $6.75 in 
years 3, 4 and 5, annual cost $95,667.00/$99,346.56, 1234 North State Route 2, in the City of New 
Martinsville, Wetzel County, West Virginia. 
 
HHR-214  Renewal for 3 years consisting of 747 square feet of office space with an increase in the 
annual per square foot rate from $14.00 to $18.00, annual cost $13,446.00, full service, 1000 Elmer 
Prince Drive, in the City of Morgantown, Monongalia County, West Virginia. 
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INCREASE IN SQUARE FEET  

WEST VIRGINIA STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 
 
SAO-008  Increase of square footage from 11,372 square feet to 14,672 square feet of office/storage 
space at the current annual rate of $12.00, annual cost from $136,464.00 to $176,064.00, 200 West Main 
Street, in the City of Clarksburg, Harrison County, West Virginia. 

CANCELLATION 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES 

HHR-250  Lease cancellation consisting of 300 square feet of office space, at the monthly rate of 
$400.00, annual cost $4,800.00, full service, 312 West King Street, in the City of Martinsburg, Berkeley 
County, West Virginia. 



Real Estate Division

Monthly Summary of Lease Activity

June 1 - 30, 2019

# of 

Transactions Agency Lease # County

Square 

Feet

Rental 

Rate

Annual 

Rent

Term 

in 

years

Total 

Aggregate

1 Real Estate Division RED-008 Kanawha 360 5.00 1,800 3.08 5,544

2 Real Estate Division RED-009 Kanawha 116 5.00 580 3.08 1,786

3 West Virginia Public Employees Grievance Board EGB-016 Kanawha 5,352 13.50 72,252 5 361,260

  West Virginia Public Employees Grievance Board EGB-016 Kanawha 5,352 14.00 74,928 5 374,640

4 Department of Environmental Protection DEP-192 Brooke 960 1.00/yr 1 10 10

5 West Virginia Auditor's Office SAO-006 Kanawha 14,400 3.83 55,152 3 165,456

6 State Treasurer's Office STO-004 Kanawha 17,000 6.00 102,000 11 1,122,000 *

7 Northern Panhandle Workforce Development Board NPW-001 Hancock 776 17.00 13,192 1 13,192

8 Division of Rehabilitation Services DRS-128 Harrison 12,786 19.00 242,934 3 728,802

9 Division of Rehabilitation Services DRS-120 Logan 4,285 12.00 51,420 3 154,260

10 Purchasing Division, Surplus Property SRP-001 Kanawha 29,217 1.86 54,304 3 162,912

11 Coal Heritage Highway Authority CHH-001 Mercer 450 3.39 1,525 3 4,574

12 Workforce West Virginia WWV-017 Mason 224 40.18 9,000 1 9,000

13 Prosecuting Attorney's Institute PAI-003 Kanawha 2,075 12.72 26,400 5 132,000

14 West Virginia Lottery LOT-007 Jefferson 120 8.00 960 1 960

15 Consolidated Public Retirement Board CPR-006 Kanawha 3,000 10.95 32,850 2.9166 95,810

16 Department of Environmental Protection DEP-127 Monongalia 300 1.00 1 5 5

17 DOCR, Bureau of Juvenile Services BJS-003 Kanawha 12,266 10.49 128,670 3 386,011

18 DOCR, Bureau of Juvenile Services BJS-033 Raleigh 3,324 10.00 33,240 3 99,720

19 West Virginia State Police PSA-012 Wayne Land 1,200/yr 1,200 5 6,000

20 West Virginia State Police PSA-078 Boone 2,670 3.00 8,010 5 40,050

21 West Virginia Conservation Agency SCC-008 Hampshire 3,043 9.18 27,935 3 83,804

22 Division of Forestry FOR-094 Braxton 156 1.92 300 1 300

23 Department of Health and Human Resources HHR-233 Wetzel 14,718 6.50 95,667 2 191,334

  Department of Health and Human Resources HHR-233 Wetzel 14,718 6.75 99,347 3 298,040

24 Department of Health and Human Resources HHR-214 Monongalia 747 18.00 13,446 3 40,338

25 West Virginia State Auditor's Office SAO-008 Harrison 14,672 12.00 176,064 2.5 440,160

251.27

Total Rentable Square Feet 163,087

6.77

Total Annual Rent 1,323,177

 *Indicates the total will be over $1,000,000.00 during the term of the lease.

CANCELLATIONS

# of 

Transactions Agency Lease # County

Square 

Feet

Rental 

Rate

Annual 

Rent

1 Department of Health and Human Resources HHR-250 Berkeley 300 16.00 4,800

Total Rentable Square Feet 300

Total Annual Rent 4,800

Average Annual Rental Rate



Joint Committee on Government and Finance 
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Annual Budget Actual Actual

Budget 2019 Year-to-Date April 30, 2019 April 30, 2018 Variance Variance

$ % $ %

Beginning Operating Fund Balance  $5,541,320 $6,049,877 ($508,557) ‐8%

Revenues

 Federal Grants $41,657,254 $41,212,956 $444,298 1%

 State Appropriations

 Premium Revenues $1,525,752 $1,271,460 $1,322,163 $1,231,506 $90,657 7% $50,703 4%

 Investment Earnings (Interest) $149,986 $47,720 $102,266 214%

Total Operating Fund Revenues $43,129,403 $42,492,181 $637,222 1%

Expenditures:

  Claims Expenses:

    Physicians & Surgical $11,633,306 $11,104,438 $528,868 5%

    Prescribed Drugs $7,783,240 $7,429,996 $353,244 5%

    Outpatient Services $6,781,119 $6,570,552 $210,567 3%

    Dental $6,209,687 $5,634,570 $575,117 10%

    Inpatient Hospital Services $3,216,282 $3,217,755 ($1,473) 0%

    Other Services $2,483,684 $1,917,602 $566,082 30%

    Therapy $1,661,398 $1,669,596 ($8,198) 0%

    Inpatient Mental Health $511,922 $641,195 ($129,273) ‐20%

    Vision $575,644 $581,091 ($5,447) ‐1%

    Durable & Disposable Med. Equip. $353,295 $340,203 $13,092 4%

    Medical Transportation $380,176 $324,586 $55,590 17%

    Outpatient Mental Health $305,059 $389,049 ($83,990) ‐22%

    Less: Other Collections** ($133,412) ($15,495) ($117,918) 761%

               Drug Rebates ($1,440,966) ($1,200,805) ($1,695,346) ($1,032,033) ($663,312) 64% $627,953 ‐52%

      Total Claims Expenses $48,725,436 $40,604,530 $40,066,054 $38,773,105 $1,292,949 3% ($538,476) ‐1%

 Administrative Expenses:

   Salaries and Benefits $0 $0 $0

   Program Administration $2,822,417 $2,352,014 $1,706,306 $2,648,378 ($942,072) ‐36% ($645,708) ‐27%

   Eligibility $1,688 $9,980 ($8,292) 100%

   Outreach & Health Promotion $100,000 $83,333 $320 $10,190 ($9,870) ‐97% ($83,013) ‐100%

   Current $326,676 $272,230 $194,089 $44,015 $150,074 341% ($78,141) ‐29%

    Total Administrative Expenses in Operating Fund $3,249,093 $2,707,577 $1,902,403 $2,712,563 ($810,160) -30% ($805,174) ‐30%

Total Operating Fund Expenditures $51,974,529 $43,312,108 $41,968,457 $41,485,668 $482,789 1% ($1,343,651) ‐3%

Adjustments ($80,135) ($164,122)

Ending Operating Fund Balance $6,782,401 $7,220,512 ($438,111) -6%

  Money Market $1,052,665 $1,030,721 $21,944 2%

  Bond Pool $4,492,992 $4,337,808 $155,184 4%

  Cash on Deposit $1,236,745 $1,851,983 ($615,239) -33%

Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investment $52,635 ($32,737) $85,371 -261%

Ending Fund Balance (Accrued Basis)  $6,835,036 $7,187,776 ($352,740) -5%

Program Expenses outside of Operating Funds:

                  Salaries and Benefits $702,625 $585,521 $450,141 $479,681 ($29,540) -6% ($135,380) ‐23%

                  Eligibility $326,676 $272,230 $31,588 $37,185 ($5,597) -15% ($238,954) ‐88%

Total Administrative Expenses: $4,278,384 $3,565,328 $2,384,132 $3,229,429 ($845,297) -26% ($1,181,196) ‐33%

Total WVCHIP Expenditures $53,003,830 $44,169,858 $42,450,186 $42,002,534 $447,652 1% ($1,719,672) ‐4%

Footnotes:

1)  Statement is on cash basis

2)  Estimate of Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) claims on April 30, 2019  is $4,790,000.  The April 30, 2018 estimate was $4,240,435

3)  Administrative Accounts Payable balance on April 30, 2019 is $550,260.  The April 30, 2018 balance is $412,934

6)  Other Collections are primarily provider refunds and subrogations (amounts received from other insurers responsible for bill WVCHIP paid ‐ primarily auto).

7)  Physician & Surgical services include physicians, clinics, lab, Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC), and vaccine payments.

8)  Other Services include home health, chiropractors, psychologists, podiatrists, and nurse practitioners

5)  Revenues are primarily federal funds.  During State Fiscal Years 2019 and 2018 WVCHIP's Federal Matching Assistance Percentage (FMAP) was 100%.

Unaudited ‐ For Management Purposes Only

West Virginia Children's Health Insurance Program

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Changes in Fund Balance, and Budget-to-Actual 

For the Ten Months Ending April 30, 2019 and April 30, 2018

Actual Budget

4)  2018 and 2017 adjustments to fund balance represent timing issues between the payment of expense and the draw‐down of federal revenues
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ATTACHMENT 1

2016 2016
County Pop. Total CHIP Total Medicaid Total CHIP/Medicaid Est. # Children

2016 Est. Enrollment Enrollment CHIP/Medicaid Enrollment Uninsured Uninsured
County (0-18 Yrs) Jun-19 Jun-19 Enrollment % of Population 3% Ranking*

Barbour 3,470 240 1,729 1,969 56.7% 104 33

Berkeley 27,800 1,861 11,775 13,636 49.1% 834 2

Boone 5,087 260 2,972 3,232 63.5% 153 27

Braxton 2,947 156 1,516 1,672 56.7% 88 39

Brooke 4,185 1 78 79 1.9% 126 31

Cabell 19,601 864 9,149 10,013 51.1% 588 3

Calhoun 1,427 103 822 925 64.8% 43 51

Clay 2,041 137 1,306 1,443 70.7% 61 44

Doddridge 1,479 94 652 746 50.4% 44 49

Fayette 9,297 708 5,117 5,825 62.7% 279 12

Gilmer 1,212 92 581 673 55.5% 36 54

Grant 2,343 125 1,154 1,279 54.6% 70 42

Greenbrier 7,018 585 3,642 4,227 60.2% 211 16

Hampshire 4,619 278 2,298 2,576 55.8% 139 30

Hancock 5,876 560 4,151 4,711 80.2% 176 20

Hardy 2,847 218 1,586 1,804 63.4% 85 40

Harrison 15,199 882 6,240 7,122 46.9% 456 7

Jackson 6,506 327 2,996 3,323 51.1% 195 18

Jefferson 13,304 678 3,941 4,619 34.7% 399 9

Kanawha 38,824 2,131 19,093 21,224 54.7% 1,165 1

Lewis 3,432 255 1,862 2,117 61.7% 103 35

Lincoln 4,849 277 2,915 3,192 65.8% 145 28

Logan 7,095 394 4,361 4,755 67.0% 213 15

Marion 11,654 667 5,250 5,917 50.8% 350 11

Marshall 6,478 296 2,561 2,857 44.1% 194 19

Mason 5,798 256 2,841 3,097 53.4% 174 21

McDowell 3,994 198 2,939 3,137 78.5% 120 32

Mercer 12,774 834 8,053 8,887 69.6% 383 10

Mineral 5,626 251 2,228 2,479 44.1% 169 23

Mingo 5,632 260 3,774 4,034 71.6% 169 22

Monongalia 17,905 926 5,406 6,332 35.4% 537 5

Monroe 2,781 263 1,220 1,483 53.3% 83 41

Morgan 3,367 264 1,504 1,768 52.5% 101 36

Nicholas 5,271 346 2,905 3,251 61.7% 158 25

Ohio 8,365 387 3,825 4,212 50.4% 251 14

Pendleton 1,269 95 589 684 53.9% 38 52

Pleasants 1,473 82 602 684 46.4% 44 50

Pocahontas 1,517 114 783 897 59.1% 46 48

Preston 6,658 393 2,930 3,323 49.9% 200 17

Putnam 13,446 656 4,504 5,160 38.4% 403 8

Raleigh 16,494 1,053 9,030 10,083 61.1% 495 6

Randolph 5,586 430 2,920 3,350 60.0% 168 24

Ritchie 2,034 99 1,092 1,191 58.6% 61 45

Roane 3,116 260 1,721 1,981 63.6% 93 38

Summers 2,225 168 1,439 1,607 72.2% 67 43

Taylor 3,449 200 1,676 1,876 54.4% 103 34

Tucker 1,199 110 530 640 53.4% 36 55

Tyler 1,848 91 730 821 44.4% 55 46

WVCHIP Enrollment Report
JUNE 2019
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ATTACHMENT 1

2016 2016
County Pop. Total CHIP Total Medicaid Total CHIP/Medicaid Est. # Children

2016 Est. Enrollment Enrollment CHIP/Medicaid Enrollment Uninsured Uninsured
County (0-18 Yrs) Jun-19 Jun-19 Enrollment % of Population 3% Ranking*

WVCHIP Enrollment Report
JUNE 2019

Upshur 5,197 341 2,943 3,284 63.2% 156 26

Wayne 8,809 412 4,853 5,265 59.8% 264 13

Webster 1,787 99 1,275 1,374 76.9% 54 47

Wetzel 3,255 151 1,835 1,986 61.0% 98 37

Wirt 1,245 68 657 725 58.2% 37 53

Wood 18,641 1,053 8,942 9,995 53.6% 559 4

Wyoming 4,707 278 2,643 2,921 62.1% 141 29

Totals 384,058 22,327 184,136 0.0% 11,522

The above map shows the most recent 2016 county level data provided by the U.S. Census Bureau Small 
Area Health Insurance Estimates (SAHIE) for children under 19 years.  While the statewide average for 
children under 19 is now about 3%, the SAHIE data reflects more accurately the variation from county to 
county depending on the availability of employer sponsored insurance and should be a more accurate way to 
target outreach than in previous years.
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CALENDAR NOTE 

Board Meeting 
August 8, 2019 

 

OPERATING REPORT 
MAY 2019 

Board of Treasury 
Investments 

315 70th Street, SE 
Charleston WV 

25304 
(304) 340-1564 

www.wvbti.com 

Board of Directors 
John D. Perdue, 
State Treasurer, 

Chairman 

James C. Justice II, 
Governor 

John B. McCuskey,  
State Auditor 

Glenda Probst, 
Appointed by the 

Governor  

Michael L. Glasser, 
Esq. Attorney 

Appointed by the 
Governor 

Executive Staff 
Executive 
Director 

Kara K. Hughes,  
CPA, MBA, CFE, 

CGIP 
 

Chief Financial 
Officer  

Karl Shanholtzer,   
CFA, CPA, CIA 

   

 Total Net Assets Under 
Management   

 

$5,271,897,000 
 

 
Net Assets for the Past 

12 Months 

Last Month 
$5,305,721,000 

Beginning of Fiscal Year 
$4,429,483,000 

 

Total Net Income & Changes in 
Fair Value 

 
 

Fiscal Year  
$120,314,000 

 

 
 Monthly Net Income & 

Changes in Fair Value for 
the Past 12 Months 

 

Money Market Pools 
As of May 31, 2019 

Pool 
30-Day  

Avg. Yield * W.A.M. ** Net Assets 

WV Money Market 2.5187% 40 Days $4.1 Billion 

WV Gov’t Money Market 2.3502% 26 Days $246.8 Million 

*    Yields represent the simple money market yield net of fees. 
**   W.A.M. is the weighted average maturity. 

 

 

 



 

WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF TREASURY INVESTMENTS 
THE ECONOMIC STATE 

MAY 2019 
 

 

Stay Committed to Balanced Risk  
 
  
Market Results 
 
It appears markets were ready to take off for the summer as the “sell in May and go away” adage took effect. 
Equities declined across the board amid renewed concerns around US trade policy. The S&P 500 Index came 
off its record high, losing 6.4% in May; emerging market equities lost even more, falling 7.3%, according to 
the MSCI Emerging Markets Index, as a stronger US dollar also took a bite out of returns. 
 
The flight-to-quality led to a decline in global yields and a subsequent rally in safe-haven assets. In the US, 
10- and 30-year Treasuries declined 36 and 35 basis points, respectively. The movement in longer-dated yields 
caused parts of the yield curve to invert – specifically at the 10-year, 3-month and 10-year, 1-year points. As 
a result, the Barclays US Treasury Index and Barclays Long Treasury Index increased 2.4% and 6.5%, 
respectively, during the month. In credit, spreads widened with the Barclays US High Yield Index experiencing 
the largest change, increasing 75 basis points to 4.33%, leading to a monthly decline of 1.2%. 
 
Within real assets, spot WTI Crude Oil reversed recent gains, falling 16.2% to $54 amid concerns on the 
potential impact of tariffs on the demand for oil. Despite its losses in May, WTI Crude Oil is up 18.5% for the 
year. 
 
Market Outlook 
 
We believe volatility is likely here to stay as the US administration revisits the issue of tariffs and the 
economy advances to the late stage of the market cycle. To this end, we remind clients to stay committed to 
a risk-balanced approach and to evaluate market opportunities should larger short-term dislocations occur.   
 
 



 
 



 

WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF TREASURY INVESTMENTS 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION – UNAUDITED 

MAY 31, 2019 
    (IN THOUSANDS) 

 

WV Money 
Market Pool

WV Government 
Money Market 

Pool

WV Short 
Term Bond 

Pool
WV Bank 

Pool Other Pools

Participant 
Directed 
Accounts Total

Assets
Investments:

At amortized cost 4,090,985$  246,825$             -$          77,038$   139,870$    -$          4,554,718$ 
At fair value -              -                       734,343     -          -              3,019        737,362      

Other assets 3,334           37                        3,723         577          208             28             7,907          
Total assets 4,094,319    246,862               738,066     77,615     140,078      3,047        5,299,987   

Liabilities
Accrued expenses, dividends payable &

payables for investments purchased 23,245         61                        4,772         5              7                 -            28,090        
Total liabilities 23,245         61                        4,772         5              7                 -            28,090        

Net Position
Held in trust for investment pool participants 4,071,074    246,801               733,294     77,610     140,071      -            5,268,850   
Held in trust for individual investment

account holders -              -                       -            -          -              3,047        3,047          
Total net position 4,071,074$  246,801$             733,294$   77,610$   140,071$    3,047$      5,271,897$ 

Additions
Investment income:

Interest and dividends 4,048$         146$                    1,748$       175$        205$           11$           6,333$        
Net (amortization) accretion 4,985           397                      49              -          -              (2)              5,429          
Provision for uncollectible loans -              -                       -            -          -              -            -              

Total investment income 9,033           543                      1,797         175          205             9               11,762        

Investment expenses:
Investment advisor, custodian bank &

administrative fees 230              17                        61              2              3                 -            313             
Total investment expenses 230              17                        61              2              3                 -            313             

Net investment income 8,803           526                      1,736         173          202             9               11,449        
Net realized gain (loss) from investments 9                  1                          49              -          -              -            59               
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of

investments -              -                       2,996         -          -              19             3,015          

Net increase (decrease) in net position
from operations 8,812           527                      4,781         173          202             28             14,523        

Participant transaction additions:
Purchase of pool units by participants 788,056       79,611                 -            176          41               -            867,884      
Reinvestment of pool distributions 8,812           527                      1,867         173          202             -            11,581        
Contributions to individual investment

accounts -              -                       -            -          -              -            -              
Total participant transaction additions 796,868       80,138                 1,867         349          243             -            879,465      

Total additions 805,680       80,665                 6,648         522          445             28             893,988      

Deductions
Distributions to pool participants:

Net investment income 8,803           526                      1,736         173          202             -            11,440        
Net realized gain (loss) from investments 9                  1                          49              -          -              -            59               

Total distributions to pool participants 8,812           527                      1,785         173          202             -            11,499        

Participant transaction deductions:
Redemption of pool units by participants 856,806       39,015                 100            176          1,047          -            897,144      
Withdrawals from individual investment

accounts -              -                       -            -          -              19,168      19,168        
Total participant transaction deductions 856,806       39,015                 100            176          1,047          19,168      916,312      

Total deductions 865,618       39,542                 1,885         349          1,249          19,168      927,811      

Net increase (decrease) in net position from
operations (59,938)        41,123                 4,763         173          (804)            (19,140)     (33,823)       

Inter-pool transfers in 3,150           -                       -            -          -              -            3,150          
Inter-pool transfers out -              -                       -            (3,150)     -              -            (3,150)         
Net inter-pool transfers in (out) 3,150           -                       -            (3,150)     -              -            -              

Change in net position (56,788)        41,123                 4,763         (2,977)     (804)            (19,140)     (33,823)       
Net position at beginning of period 4,127,862    205,678               728,531     80,587     140,875      22,187      5,305,720   
Net position at end of period 4,071,074$  246,801$             733,294$   77,610$   140,071$    3,047$      5,271,897$ 
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MEMORANDUM
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RE Munlhly Rennn on Lonny opemmns
MrmLh Fndlng June 30, 2019

DATE. My 111, 21119

1111. repon ofthc Lonery npmunns rs nroudcd pursuant 10 me Sm: Louery Am

Fmancml “memes or me Lnncry for me munlh endmg June 30, 21119 an .ullachcd. Lottery (avenue, which
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LotteryMm them.
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Dave Hardy, Cal-1mm Sewclnryr Dept ufRevcnue
John Purdue, Tmsuxet
1 a, McCuekcy, Audnur
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WEST VIRGINIALOTTERY

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-IJNAI]1)1TEI)-

Jun: 3|). 2019

WEST VIRGINIALUI‘I'ERY



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I’lge

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES ANDCHANGES LN FUND NET YOSITIONT

‘

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘

SCE'EBULE or NET REVENUES



WESTVIRGINIA LOTIERV
STATEMENTOF VET POSITION

(In Thouunds}

ASSETS

CurrentAm
Cash and mhmummy:
Accomm reachable
Invcnmry
011mwas

11:13! Oman Assam

mpmlmm
1m accumulawrl dzpvmcxmon and amommuv/n

Nu cmal mms

mu NoMunmI Amn-

76111 Assen-

mic-ml sumo»- ufl‘esourws

Tm! uses andmm onlllfiws

0mm [whilmes
Amman mmpexalmg fismbuunm 16 Lbs

Sum 61Wm vngm
1211mm pm: claws
Amm payalvl:
011m 3661'qu lmbfimex
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WEST VIRGIN“ LOTTERY
STATENEEIVTS or CASH FLOWS

FOR 1111: TWELVEMONTHPERIOD ENDEDMN]! 30, 21119

(In Thumnax)
«mummy

2111 9 211111

cm. flows fi'mn upemhng mwmes
mu xeczlvod [mm Emma: and 611m Samoa 3 1,153,476 1, 1,099,113:
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01116: wantingms): (616.563) (584.59fl
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13.111 mm {mm“mum financmg “1mm.
Nonapcnning msmhuums1a 111: $131: 61Wm Vugmm (453.235) (433.255)
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.llnauditod-

NOTE 1 - LEGISLATIVE ENACTMENT

The West virgima Lottery (Lottery) was established by the State Lottery Acl (Act) passed April 13) 1935.

winch crenttd a speetal fund in the State Treasury destgnated as the “$le: Lottery Fund" The purposeofthe
Act was to establish and unplentertt a statertypmted lonery antler the superttsiott ora state lottery commisston
(Comini ’on) and a ditectnr. The Commission, consisting of seven mernhets and the Dtteetor are appointed

by the Governor Under the Aer. the Camrni on has certain powers and the duty to establish rttles for

wnducnng games, to select the type and number of gamtng systems or games and to enter tote contracts and

agreements, andto do all acts neecssary or tnctdental to the performance ol‘its duties and exerctse ofils power
and duty to operate the lottery in a htghly emctent lumen The Act provides that a mutimum annual average

or 45% in the gross arnount mwcd horn each lottery shall be allocated fin pnzes antl also pmvidcs for

certain linutntions on expenses necessary for operattort and admtrustrauon of the lottery. To the ethl
ayatlable, rematntng net profits are m be dtscnbutod to the State or West Virginia. As the State is able to

impose tta will oyer the lottery, the Lottery ts considered a wmponcm unit of the State and tts finanetal

statements are presented in the comprehensive annual finaneial report of the State as a blended proprietary

fund eontpouent urnt

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOITI‘ITLNG POLICIES

A summary orthe significant awounttng policies orthe lottery is presentedbelon,

BASIS or rmnxttmox e The West Vtrgtnia Lottery is a contpnnent unit or the State ofWest Virginia
and ts amounted lot as a proprietary litnd spectal purpose government engaged in business type aettvtties In

accordance with tinyomtnental Aeoounttng Standards Board (GASB) Statement Not 34, “Basic Ftnanctal

Statements and Mmagsrmcm’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments" and with

acsounting principtes generally aecepted tn the United States ofAlnenca. the financial stattnnents are prepared

on the acomal basis or accounting which requires recognition of revenue when eamcd and expenses when

meurred. As permitted by Governmental Aeoounttng Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20,

“Accuuml'ng and Financtal Reparringfar Pmprlemry Funds and what Governmental Emitter not Use

Proprietary Fund Ancoanhng," the lottery has elected not to adept rinanetal Accounting Standards Board

(FASB) statements and interpretations issued utter November 30, I989 unless the GASB specifically adopts

such FASE statements or tnterpretattons.

The lottery ts included tn the State's haste financial statements as a proprtetnry litnd and business type

aetivtty using the acorual basts (If aetounttng Because of the Lottery's presentation in these financial

statements as a special purpose government engaged in business type aeu ties, there may be ditrerences in

presentation of amounts reporwd in mm finaneial statements and the basic linancial statements or the State as
a result ofmajor tuntl dctenninauort

use 011 ESIIMATES e The preparation at the financial svawmems in eonromntywith neeounnng principles

gensmlly 5&1:de in the United Slates nf Am: a: tequila: management to mdkc cenain csllmzltss and

dzvelop assumpuons thal direct the: amounts rsponcd in the financial siatemtmls andmutedmiles ‘0
financial

statements. Actual results could ditrer [mmmanagement'sesurnntes,



WEST VIRG NlALOTTERY
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Un3udiled-

NOTE 2 - SUMVIARY 0F SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

LOTTERY GAMEormnows e The Wen Virginia loliciy denvcs iis ieiicnues fmm foul hasic lypcs or

loilcry games: insianr. online, video lype games, and inhle games The Lottery develops muliiple game

lhclnts ind pnlrc scruciurcsw complywnli iis enaliliug legislalion, including aggrcgoie annual minimum prize
provisions. All bonded readers and agems comprised principally of gmcmy and mnvcmenc: siorcs serve as
lhe primary disnihuiion channel far innanr and nnrhn: lorrery sales In die generiil public

The Lottery has conirucied wiih a pnvale vendor to manufncruie, disnihuic, and providc darn proccssing

suppon ior insianr and onrhne games Under die ierms oiihe agreemenis, llie Loilcry pays a peroeniagc of

gross revenues or gross proiiis [or the processing and maiiuiacrure qul-le games

Revenue from inseam gimes is mmgnlzed when game lickeis are sold lo ihc relailers, and die relaled pn'zo

expense is recorded hascd oii die specific game prim srruciiirc lnsiani ticket sales and relsiod prizes do not

include ihc vnlue office plays issued for she purpose oiincreasing die odds ol' winning a prize.

Sales of onrline lonery holes are made lay licensed agenrs io die pulalic widn ihc use oi compuierizcd
iemainals 0n-liue games include POWERBALUE, a mullima‘e “jackpot" gnmc; Mega Millions®, a multir

slaw‘jackpot" gam Cashzs “lotto" game;mm and 4 “numlans” games and Trzwl. a daily “kn-no" gnmc

Revenue is recognized when die ageni sells the tickets lo inc pulilic, Prize expense is recognized on die basis

oi iciual drawing resulis

Commissions arc pnid io insiani game ieiailers and online ngenls or die ralc of seven perceni or gross salcs. A

pcriioii or rhe commission mm In :xcccd one and one nuaner pcrccnr oi gross sales may he paid fmm

unclaimed pnzc moneys The amount paid horn unclaimed prize moneys is crediicd againsi prize coals lu

aldditiun. relnlers and ngenls are paid limiied bonus inccntivcs dial include prize shares on wIm'LIng nclrcis

ihey sold and a riclrei cashing bonus on winning lickers ihey cash, On a n kly hasis, rcriders and agems

musr rumir arnounis due io die loiiery. Retailers my pal he ahlc ro order addiiional Inslflm riclrcrs ifpaymeni
has not hem made for die previous hilling penod while in ageni‘s sin-line renninalmay lac rendered inacrive

if payment is nor received each week. Nu one ieiailcr or argon accmmls for a sigiiilieani amouni of die

Lonery's sales or account: receivalile Hismfiuafly ciedir losses have been nominal and no allowance for

daublful smunis receivable is consideiednecessary.

video lodeiy is n aclf—nolivalodvideo version ol‘lodery games winch is iiiicrared by an audioiized licensee

The hoard-operarcd games allow ii player or place liels for die chance lo lac iwarded credit: which can cidier

lac redeemed for cash or he replayed as additional bels The coin npcraied gAmCS allow a player to use coins.

currency, or iokens lo place heis- for ihe chance in receive coin or man awnids which may bc redeemed {0!

cash ur used for replay in ihc coin opcraird games rhe video lollcny games' prize siruocures are designed lo

nwnxd prizes, or cmdlts, ai a sripulaird rare nflolail heir played, and prize cxpmsc is nelicd iguinsr tom video

crodiis played. The Lonery recognizes as video lottery rcvonuc “gloss zenninnl income" equivalent in all

wagers, nei ufxclllted prizes, Amounts required hy slainic in he paid lo die pnvaic and local gnvemmem

modes are reporicd is commissions wv Lollcry sralules hnve csmhlnhvd specific requiremcnis ior iidco
lonery and imposed cerrain itslrictiuns limiling rhe licensing in opei-aiioii of will» lonery games In

horse and dog racclracks in Wesi Virginia (subject to local coumy elecrions permiin'ng lhe same), limired

licensed rciadcr areas restricted ror aduli amusemem, and liocnsed hisloric ieson hoiels as dcflned lay wv
Code.



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

>Unalldi‘cd-

NOTE 2 » SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The legislaiien funher sirpulares me dismhuuou of revenues me video lonery games, and requires any Video

lrmery licensee Io he .esponsihle ior aeqru‘nng me neressary equiprnera and hearing me risk assoeiaied wnh
me costs eroperaimg and maxkcdng ihe games.

Tahle games are louemes us eaeh game involyes consideration, the pessrhiliry oi‘a prize, and their ommmc is
deiennined predouunanrly by ehanee, which lire eemnrnn law of wesr virgirua has long held are me three:

essenual elemems of a lonery. Table games are iire exclusive iniangihle inrelleerual pmpeny oitlle sraie of
Wesr virgin Table games legislaiieu has esrahlrsherl speerlie [Equimmcms for table games and imposed

eenain resuieuons limiung are licensing for operauon of lahle games ro horse and dog raeenaehs in

West Virginia (suhjeei \0 local cuunly eleorions permining ihe same), and licensed hlswric msurl limels as

defined by wv Cede Eaeh lieensee as an agenr erase lonery Commission (0 operme West Virginia lahle

games shall have wnnm rules or play for eaeh mhle game it operatcs uhieh musi be approved hy rhe

Commission All wagers and payrofl's ofwinnlng wagers shall he made ueeercling to rhese rules orplay For

the privilege or huldmg a table games lieerrse. :here is levied a pruulege (M ut‘lhlrty-five pereeni or eaeh
licenscc’sadjusred gross mncipts for rhe opemfiun ofWesr Vrrgmia Lonery ldble garnes. AmoIIIIIs required by

slamta to he paid or privure and local govemmcmerniires are repnned as eoinmrssreus. The legislation lunher

siipulsies ihe dismimrien of revenues from Wesi Virginia iahle games, and requires any lreensee in he

responsible for acquiring the neeessary equipment anal hearing the risk assoeiuieri with the oesls of oprmiing
and kaeung rhe games,

CASE AND chsu EQUIVALENTS 7 Cash and cash equivalenis pnmanly consist cfinlercsL-emmng deposrrs in

an External invesnnem pool mainmined hy rhe West Virginia Board ole'easury invesmrems (lam rhe BTI

pool is a 2,” like pool earned ai unionized costwhich appmximalcs fair value orrhe undcflylng s euriries

mum“ , Invunlory eunsisrs ofn |anl game uehers amilahle fax sale in approved Leuery reiailers and is

ean-ied ai ensi as deierrnined hyihe speeirie identification meihod

mum ASSETS 7 other assels ennsisi of deposns reshieied ior paymem or eenam MultirSialc Lonery

Assoerauen aermnes and prepaid expenses

curiae hissms e The Lottery has admired a polrey of eapiraliamg assers wuh individual amoums

exceeding $25,000 These assers include leasehold rmprovernenrs and purehaserl cquhpmcm. eumprised

prineipally or leelmology property, elliee iurnislungs and equipmeru neeessary m admirusrer louery games
are earned a: eosr Depreeiarinn is eouipurral hy Lb: smughK-line meihorl using ihree w ten year Lives

ADVERTISBG AND moMOTmNs , The lamery expenses ihe costs or advenising and pmmuiious as Lhey

are incurred

commsnnumamas , The lonery has aeerued $554712 and $631,080 ai June 30, 2019 and 2013,

respeeuvely, for esumared ohligauous tha| may arise in eonaeerion wiih eornpeusaied absences for vaeauon at

Lhe eunem mle oi employee pay Employees rully year in all earned hui unused vaeahou, To Ihc exlenr lhar

neeumulareri reek leave is expeereri re be convened no henerns on remunalion or mllremcnt, Lhc Lonery

parueipares in anmher posremployrnem benefits plan (see Nore 16)



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unnutfited»

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

our Pnsn’loN Net posiuon ts presented a rcsn-icted, unrestrieted and net investment in capital assets

whreh represent the net book value of all property and equipmenl ot'Lhe Lotte-rt when an expense is tncurred

[or purposes for which both restrteted and nnresn-ieted net posttirrn are available, restrietotl reseunes are
applied first

OPERATINGliltvm'lms m‘n EXPENSES e Operatlrtg levcnues and expenses [or proprietary funds such as

the Lottery are revenues and expenses that result fiom pmvidillg services and pmdnclng and delivering goods

and/or services Opmljllg revenues ter the lottery are den-Nod fi'cm pmvlding various types of lottery games

oper ing axpcnscs inelude cummissionst prize nests, other direet mm 01 providing lottery games, and

adm 'su‘afive expenses All revenues and expenses not meeting this dertnitnrn are reported as nenopen-ating

revenues and expenses.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Al June so, 2019 the canying amounts el deposits (overdrah) wtth finnnetal tnstituuuns Were $448 thousand

with a bank balance (nyerdrafi) of $477 thousand. or Lhis balance $250 thuusand was covered by federal

depository insuranee with the remainrng halanee eoliaterahzed with seeurities held by the SDIIE or West

Virginia's agent tn the Sulc's nnne

A summery of the arnuunt on deposit with the West Virginia Board or Trcluuly Investments (ml) is as

follows (In thousands):

lnnemzrtly Ima}0,20lx

Drposlls wrtlr financial institution t m s m
Cash on hand a| the Tlcaunrr‘s ofiee new 5,022

investments wtttr EII Mnncd as seen equivalents 177,700 NLISD

I9 x37 3 146,66!

Th: depestts with the BTI are part or the State olWest Vlrgmla's consolidated investment eash liquidity pool,

lnvesnnent income is pmemlcd to the Lottery at rates speetfied by the ET] h- ed on the halartee or the depnsrts
maintained in relation to the tetnl denustts of all sure ageneies parllcxpaling in the peel Sueh fill-ids are

nvallabl: tn the Lottery wtth (wemighl notiee.



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unaudited—

NOTE 4 7 CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary or capiml asset activity for the month ended June 30, 2019 is as follows (in Ihollsands)

Capital Assets
Historical Cubl Hisrorical 00st
At lune 30, 2018 Addlfions Deletions At June 30, 2019

Consmetmn in
Ymgxzss 3 oz9 s - S - s on
Bulldings 43,143 . . 4x143
Land 1.681 , , 1,681

Fquipuxm 10,999 . - 10.999

5 51,552 x - s , 3 61,552

Accumulated
Depreciation-

Historical Cost Hlsmncal Coat

At June 30. 201x Addl‘ions Deleuuns At lune 30. 2019

Buildings 5 was 3 1,233 5 , b 7,590
Eqml'lmm 7,039 441 , 7,430

9 13,505 x l,o74 b , 3 15,179

NOTE 5 - PARTICIPATIONIN THEMULTl-STATELOTTERV

The lottery is a member of the Mum-State Lottery (MUSL), n luch operates the semi-weekly
POWERBALLh ,ackpot lone game, the LOTTO AMERICA® game, and the MEGA MLLLIONSE iackpor
game on behalf of participating srate lotteries MUSL is currently comprised of 33 member stare lotteries
including the Distnot of Columbia and the United States Virgin Islands MUSL is managed by a Board of
Directors, which is comprised of tho lottery directors or their desigiee hon-i each or the party states The
Board ofDimclms’ responsibilities to administer theMum-StateLottery Pow. erhall. Lotto America and Mega
Millim-ls games are performed by advisory committees or panels stalled by officers and independent
contractors appointed by Lhc board. These ofiicers and ccnsulllmb serve a: the pleasure of the board and the
board prescribes their powers, duties and qualitiearions. The Executive Committee carries cut the budgeting
and financing ofMUSL. while the board connects the aririnal independent audit A copy or the audit may be

obtained by writing to the Multhgtste lonery Association, 1701mm Street. Suite 2m, West Des Muinzs,
lowu 502556723.

EachMUSL member sells game tickers Ihmugh its agents and makesweekly ivire (Innsfrxs to the MUSL in an
amount enuivalent to the total pn7= pool less the amount ot prizes won in each state. lesser pnnes are paid
directly to the itinneie by each member lottery The yrizc pool for PowrikhALm, Lorin imbue/w,
and MEGA MllLIoNs® is 50% of each dmwmg pe d‘s sales. with minuniun jackpot levels The Lottery‘s

revenues and expenses from MUSL games panioiparion fer the month ended lane 30, 2019 and fiscal year-ro-
date is as follows:

10



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

>Unnudiwd

NOTE 5 - PARTICIPATION THEML‘LTl-S’I'ATELo‘rl‘ERV (cnnfinned)

kmnm Mm1111 D

l’owcrhxl] 5 2,131,964 5 33 40,439

LottaAmmca 514,105 5.351,712

MegaMlllmns 1 63,X69 24 82,131

fund I 4,009,938 3 03,174,332

ExEn mm 5) Month YTD
Powzdaafl 5 1,070,240 ,1 15.710A69

Lona Amman 257,052
Meg): Millmrw 681,93?

Tmal 5 2.009137 5 31,974,856

MUS]. places a perce'nlage of game ,- - from each game In separate pnzc lescne funds 11m: serve as u

comingcncy reserve 1n primer the rrspccuve MUSL Pmducl Groups irnrn unrurrm pnzr linbilifiss, Thus:
funds can nnIy be 115511 n1 (he msuctimi drum respective M'USL PmduclGroup. Once arr prize rewrvs funds
excrrd 11m dssiguzmd hunt. the cxccss becomespm 0mm pamculfir pnza {7001 Prize rewrve fund mania»
am refundable w MUSL I’mduct Gmnp numbers IfflIeMUSL dishands or. aftev nus year ifa member leaves
the MUSL. The uppucume sales percentage conmbutinn a: well as 111: reserve iuud 1mm for the MUSL

garnss Is as renews,

l’cwflEuH 1000 America Mrgn minim
Required Contribunon (% ni sum) 2% 3% 1%

Keswvc Fund Cup $125,000,000 19,000,000 545,000,000

A1 Ium: 30. 2019, [he lotteries sham oflhe prize reserve fund balances warn as follows

Game Tum 111-1”.-Reserve Luncry Shah:

rowerbun 3 120,323,672 5 1,536,432
1101110Amnlcz 3,323,459 242,550
MegaM1ll1ons 93.382583 1,034,093

10101 S 217,029 1320 5 2,513,075

Lurmy prize rmmcs held by I111: MUSL ms invested rimming 10 11 1‘11st agreemenl 11rd Lonery has w1Lh

MUSL ouLlimng mveslmcnt poluzics 11:: pnlrcius mstnct invesmucnm In direct Obligations of [he Unirrd

States Government, palfecled rrpurcuasr ugmrurrrrs, 21nd cbljgaliom issued or guaranlecd as In uuyn-reni of

11



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Uuaudlled-

NOTE 5 - PARTICIPATIONIN THE MITLTl-STATE LOTTERY (cnmlnued)
principal and inteest by agencies or instrumentalitie- of the Urulcd States Government, and mutual funds or

appnrvod invesunenia The average ponfcllo maturity is never more than one year, except that up to one third

orthe portfoliomay have an average maturity nfup ie two years. The maximum marumy for any one security
does not exceed live years.

The interest earned an prize reserve lund memos is used to pay MUSL operatmg expenses and arty amounts

over and above that are credited to an unreserved rund. The Lottery records this as interest when earned This

fund had a balance of$14.137,327 at June so, 2019, ofwhlch the Lollcry's share was $1,131,935

NOTE 6 - RACETKACK VIDEOLOTTERY

'flle Racetrack video lanery legislnuen stipulates me distnbutr'en or racetrack vldco Iona'y revenues This

lbgjslafiun has been amended since inception Io restate revenue distribution based on revenue benchmarks and

has been amended again by 1113 101 as passed dunng the lirst eaaaerdinary session at 2014. For a tarmplete
summary oflh: impacts «ml; 101, see Note 11 titled “Summary impact ofReEsIlI LagIslallon " lnitially, rnur

percent (4%) of gross terminal revenue is allocated for 1ntrery adminrstrntive costs sixtycsia percent (57%) of

net tenntnal revenue (grim less 4%) is allocated in lieu of commissmns m- the mectracks (45.5%); nlhcr

private entities associaied wtth the racing industry (2 7%), and the local county and municipal guvemments
(2%), The remaining revenues (418%) of net leimtnal revenue is allocated lor distaibutren 10 State as

specified in the Racetrack Video Lottery Acl or subsequent Stare budget, as described in the Note 11 ttrlerl

"Nonupcnlllllg Distributions to the State ofWest Virginia 1'

The lirat benchmark occurs when the current year net terminal revenue meets the fiscal year 1999 net terminal

revenue. The counties and incorporated municipalities split 50/50 the two percent (2%) net ternunal revenue.

the sreond benchmarkoccurs when the current year goss tenninal revenue meets Lhc fiscal year 2001 gross
terminal revenue. The: Ibul percent (4%) is no longer allocated for lottery administrative costs, instead the

State receives this for dismbution as specified by Icgislallun er the suite budgal

The final benchmarkoccurs when the current year net terminal revenue meet. the fiscal year 1001 net terminal

revenue Al this point a 10% surcharge is applied tn net terminal revenue, with 58% nrthc surcharge annealed

tar distribution 10 the State as specified by legislation nr the State budget, and 42% or the surcharge allocated

'0 separate capital rcinvesnnent funds fox each licensed [acelnck

Afier deductren of the surcharge, 49% of net tonntunl retcnue is allocated in lien or tarmrnissieus re: the

racctraclts (42%); other pnrnate entities associated with the mung industry (5%): and the lacal muuty and

incorpomtad municipality gorremmenta (2%)



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN'I ‘

-Umudited-

OTE 6 - RACETRACK VIDEO LOTTERV (continued)

The remaining net terminal revenue (51%) ts allocated for distribution to the State as speeifimi in the
RacetrackVideo lottery Act or subsequent State budget, tts described in Note 11

Amounls [mm the capital retuyestmemt fimd may he thstnhuted to each rdceu' it if qualifying expenditures
are made within the slamwry timeitame; otherwise amounts aeeumtrlated in the tond reyert in the state excess
lottery revcnuc tend.

The wv Lollcry. along wth the Ohio. Rhode island, Maryland, and Delaware letter-res, partietpnte in Mull»
Jurisdictional Wide Area Progressive (MWAP) video gatnns This allows oath of the lotteries to odor a higher
progressive jackpm than they oould generate atone MUSL manages the progressive games and eharges each
participant a MWAP eontrihutinn fee 01' .74% of the amount wagered A summary or raeetmelt video lottery
reynaues for the mnmh ended lone 30, 2019 and tiseai yearrmrdate follows (in lhousand

current Mnnttt YmHLrDaw
1019 mix 2m 2m

Tntaloredus played 5 mm: i 4mm x 5:36,an 5 5.623559
Create (pnm) non (411,109) (4354251 0,957,776) (Spam-w)
Promotional erettttt piayad (6,506) (6,574) (73,070) (76,098}

MWAP Contributions » , t,m (7.6)

(imss tennmsl in one tum 44.195 stream sttttzvs
Admlmhlmli»:coils (as?) (x Hi) tumor 04,590)
Ncl Iamtntat tnrnrne 42,433 43,371 wt ,9n7 439,705

Less dtsmhuttnn in fiscal: (205m 12mm (261,875) (250,243)

Racmck utteo lottery revenues s 1|,be x 22,011 x m an s 229,M>1

A summary of yider. lottery revenues paid or aoerued tor certattn state runds to oontorm to the legislation as
follows (in thousands):

tune Jo, 201 a YearsweDnI:
state lattery Fund 5 5,141 a IIWJM:
stare Fronts [may tteyentre Fund 15,793 timers
Capital Rimvtmmcnl l and at a e at n

total nm-lopcflllng dismhuttens 3 21,355 3 230,032

NOTE 7 - LIMITEDVIDEOLmTERY

Limited ytdeo lottery legislation passed in mm has estahhshed speetfit lcquimmal‘tls imposing eertam
restrietinns limiting the licensing for the opnation nf limited vxdw lottery games to 9,000 terminals planed in
licensed retailers These licensed retailers must hold a qualifying permit for the sale and eonsumptiou on
premises of aleottol or nonantoxtoating heer nae LotIery has been chmgcd wtth the administration
muniton'ng and regulatinn or these machines The legslatton funller stipulates the distribution or revenues
hour the limited ytdeo tottery games, and requires any lteensees to comply with all related tutes and

regulationsofthe [micry in order to continue its retailer status The Limited video lottery lemslation
ta



WEST VIRGINIALOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM

-Unaud’ ed-

NOTE 7 . LIMITED VIDEO LOTTERY (canfinuud)
s|lpulatcs that 2% ur gress tenuinal income be deposited into die state lottery fund for adminrstrauve wsta
Then, the smlu share percentage of gross profit is in he lzansfcrled to the suite Excess lmtery Revenue Fund.
Such pcmemage is belwwn 30 aud 50 percent and is subjec! tu change on a quarterly basis. Two percent IS
distributed lo counties and ineurprnated inurucipalities in rhe manner presenbed by the slatmcs lite renuu'nrng
amount of gmss prufil is paid to retailers and/or operators as prmnbed m the Act, and is reeorded as limited
videa lottery commissions in the iiuanetal statements, Municipal and cnunly drstn Illlons are chunled for as
nonoperallng expenses.

A summary of Iimllod video lottery mvmucs for the rnanth ended June 30, 2019 and fiscal year-te-dnre
follows (in thousands)-

(Ml-Kn!Month chHArDRl:
2019 2012 1019 20m

Total credits ylayvsl s “1337 l 391,327 1 unhm 5 4.530347
Credits (pl-17:5) wan (379,275) (360,086) (4,593,197) (4.2)}.280)
Gmss rernnnai lncamc 5 32,112 3 31 zu s 291330 3 353,057

Adminisuauva Dim—s mm (525) mm) (7,361)

timemin shun 30,515 sum 360,706

Cemssinns (15,735) U 530x) mum (180,553)

Munrernairnesand Ceunues my; (m) (7.059) (mm)
lelInd vldcn lunar)! revem-es i issue 0 leave X “5,552 3 173,139

NOTE 8 7 TABLE GAMES

Table Games legislation passed in 2007 per House Bill 2718. Table gaines include blackjack, roulette, craps.
nnd vaneus rypes ofpnkel. Each raeerrnek iieensee is subject ta a pnvllegc tax of thirty iive pereenr (35%) of
adjusted gross reeeipts which will be deposited weekly into the Racetrack Table Gaines Fund.

From ihe goss ammmts deposflad inlu the Racetrack Table Games Fund, the Commission, on a mommy basis
shall:

Retain 3% arthe ddluslcd gloss reeerpts ior admimslnlivc expenses ofwhieh at least $100,000 and not more
than 5500000 annually will be transferred In the Compulsive Gamblmg Treatmeut Fund, Transfer two
pereenr eithe adjusted gmss receipts [mm eaeh lieeased maelmck m the euunty cernntissrnns of the counties
where raretraeks with West Virginia Lottery table games are lociimd Transl'er three pereent nithe adjusled
gross receipts fiom eaeh licensed raeetraeh w the govemlngbodies oi municipalities within enunties where
racetrackswilh West Virginia Lowery table games are located as prescribed by statute, And Lmnsfel oileehalf
ni nne permit of the adjusted gross receipts to the govnrning bndies ui raunreip es in which a racetrack
rable games licensee is loeated in be divided equally among the municlpallllcs. The enrnrnissien will
distribute the remaining amounts, herernalier referred m as the net amounts in the Raeetraek Table Games
Funds as follows'

14
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Umudned-

NOTE 3 — TABLEGAMES (continued)

I) 'I‘vansfer [our peiccnl mm a special fund 11: be established by (he Ruclng Chum-11155101110 be used for
payment111w the peaslha plan for all employees nfauch l1ccnscd rhelag associallon;
2) Transl'er wnpmmt 11: he dwlded and paid in equal shares, 10 each munly commisslon 1n the
slate where able games are no! loeared;
3) Transfer lea pmcnl, 10 he divided and wild in equal shares, 10 1he guvemmg bodics ofeach
municipalitym 01: sldle where uhle gnmes are 11m lumlrxL and
4) Transfer scvcnIy-slx percent a» the: Slate Execs: Lotlcry Revenue Fund,

The cash rrahsrerred 1a the sme Excess Loflcry Revenue Fund 111 lhc currem monlh is rrrelurled 1n Now 11-

Nompcmling Drsmhudoas 10 (he Slale of Wesl Vugnia. The mhle games adjusted gmss (occipts rrrr lhe
monzh and year ended June 30, 2019 Wu: $8,239,005 and $101,514,313, lespe ely The follnwmg table
shows lhe month and year canals (1f 1he pnwlcge Lax mad lhe accrued dlsmbuuous (1n (Imusnnck) 10 he
araasterred m Ihe suhseqamlmom:

Tahlearm prrvuege m 1

Imam an Tahle Gama rarrd
Admmixnnuvc earn
ram Avalahlc fax Dlslnbuhtm

Mam-mm;
Rumck Pun: Funds
’fimmughbmd 1s GmylmumiDmlmremhahd;
11mg Aixocnumn pmsraa p1...
uaarupahuw Conuues
Tum Dlsmhuutms

Excess Lanery Fund 1

camera Mama
an?
2,911

5
1219)
2,557

1x6

m
73

m
1.239

my

3

2011

2,828
5

(241»
2,545

115

s 1

2m
35,152

45
(3,0131
32,1214

2,26“
1,on
m

1951
14,905

17279

IS
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-Umudiled-

NOTE 1 — 1115101111: RESORT HOTEL
1n 2009, '11: Legslamrc passed Seth-Ale Bin :75 which pctmils vidw 1mm and table games ii i liccnsad
hisioiic msorl hotel which is defined as “a issun hntel mgisieied wiui ihe Lniisd States Depaflmanl of 1110

lulcrior as a nniioi-isi hiiion’c Landmark in i Naiim-iiii chiscry ofHiswric mines himng inn fewer ihsn five
hundred guestmoms undef commonovmmhip and hnving snhsisiiiisi mcicaimnsl guesl amenities in adduim
w the gaming facility."

Hisim-ic Resofl Video Long!

Accnnlmg ‘0 Some 13m 575, thirty six pawl (36%) of gross iminai inixniie is auacalcd to Historic Resort
Hotel Fund and ‘evenltzmpcrcml (17%) Ufgmss (minim Income is allocated In die Humnn Resmflce 13mm
Fund Themining fflnyrsevsm pmm‘fl (47%) ofgmss terminal inwme is 111m subject Io fl ien peicsni
(10%) surchalga which is allocated in scparal: capi|al mmvcslmml funds fm each licensed hislonc {(55011

home]. Themining fortyrmn and ‘hleerlsnlhs percent (423%) of gruss lun‘nmfll “100m: is relamcd by the
hISIDriC ieson hotel

A summary of 1115mm". 195011 howl Vida» loncry revenues for the month ended June 30, 2019 and fiscal year
“Him follows (in ihinisaniisy.

2019 2011 24119 2011

Iain! devkphym‘ 3 6,591 x 5.553 5 mm x 71,759

Credhs (pizzas) won (6,1sz (6 123) (76,693] (73,181)

I'mmmiannlmain plnycd (1211) (54) (mu; (m)
ems wmumal nimini m m 5,095 was
ciniuim'iivesimm (1 n) (11) (m) (221)

Exec“ Lufltrymini (3) (3 (A6) (43}

Adlmmitraflvc cnm' (111) (20) (275) (262)

1101:]mmmiiiims (in) (159) (24155; (2,04%

mi immini incinnz 151 175 1.310 1,253

UiSwr‘D 1mm Hmd rind 11m 112 1,513 1,419

Human kssinimc 12minFund 56 is» an 124



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
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-Un:udiled-

NOTE 9 , HISTORICRESORT HOTEL (couljuued)
I-Ihionc RcsorlTable Games
Each hisrorio mun hurel lioemoe is rubieoi lo a privilege lax onluriy Five neroeni (35%) orndiuaied gms:
reoeiuir, cf which rhiny pelcsm (50%) is depoaiied nireoily inw rho Hisiorio Ream Hoiel Fund and five
percent (5%) is deponied direoily inio ihe Human Resource Benefii Fund The hinono resort hoiel iuhle
gamer ndiuaied gross recelpts For the month and year ended June so, 2019 were $505,570 and 36.445534,
respeoiiyely
The following table shows [he numb and fiscal your -lo» (Late totals of the privilege tux mid rhe accrued
dismhutious (in uiousauds) in be lmnsfcrred iii the subsequenl morilh:

1m 2m 2m 2m
Tam: gains: priyilege lax s w i m 5 2,255 3 lm:
Admmiiirmie Casi: in) (24) (m) (229)

ion: Avniubk fur DISIn'BlAlIm-I 154 I60 1,965 1,550
HIlflmc Ram Hoiel Fund 129 m 1,543 hm
l-lnrnni RmurneBaum runil 25 25 512 254

1am: Ream Howl Fund

of Ihe manies dzpnsiled inn) Lh: Hislonc Rcson Hole} Fund, flficcn pcment (15%) is allocated for lnIIcry
arinnmrnniivo ends The remaining Historic Resnn Hoiel Fund ncI Income (gloss deposits 1:55 15%) is
dislrihuled as muons

1)
Z)
3)

4)

Eightysix perCcI'II (50%) is paid In the sum Excess Loltcry Revenue Fund;
Fnur peroeni (4%) is paid to he county where the gaming facillly is loomed,
Two and onelialrperoeni (z 5%) i, pald Io lhc municipality where ihe gaming facility is loaned as
mnhcd by statute;
Two and anarhalfpemenl (2.5%) Is rhvidod and paid in equal share: in die remaining munieipnlniea
in iho eouniy where ihe gaining facility is located;

5) Two and (marhalfpcmenl (2.5%) divrdod and paid in equal aliaiee, In each county unmmIssIml in
ihe sum where he gaming facilhy is nm loomed,

5) Two and nnehalfneroeni (2.5%) is divided and pEId in equal shares, in each muniomalily m lhc
stale nni already receiving ii disirihuiinn he described in iiern five (5) or ireni six (5) above

A summary ofHIslunl: Rewrl Hole! Fund revenues and relaied distribununh ie are follows (in Lhousands)
Cunenr Monih YcaHorDMe

Hision'cReam Hnml Video Lnucry s loo 3 1.513
Hismic Rgsnn Tnhk: Gama! IN L542
lnremri on Hirinno Ezwn Huiol Fund l H!

Hlswlic Reson Ham! Fund Nai Incam: 250 3,155
MunlclpuIiIies/ Comniea 44;
Exam LnrieryFund 2 3

Tu“! Dlmbuuom 3.155
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{unaudited-

NOTE 107 SPORTS WAGERING

Sporls Wagering legtslatiou passed in 2018 per Senate Bill 415, Each racetrack and hlsturic resort hotel
liomsee ts subject tn a pt-ivtlegc lax ur ten percent (10%) cf adjusted gross- wagering receipts which will
he deposited weekly into the Sports Wagering Fund.

From the privilege tax deposited into Ihc Spons WageringFund, the Commission, on a monthly basis
shall:

Retatn 15% for administrative expenses ofwhich any surplus in excess oihzsnpan shall he repuned tn
the Joint Committee on Government and Finance and remitted to the State Treasurer.

Afier the reduction for admlnist'rative expenses. the net profit shall he dcpusitcd into the Stnte Luttery
Fund until a total of 515 mlllion is deposlled. The remainder urnet prtttit shall he deposited into the
Public Empluyces lnsutnnec Agency Financial Stability Fund.

The Sports Wagering adjusted gmss wagenug receipts for the month and ycar-to-dalc pcnods ended
June 30. 2019 uere $435,053 aud “1,934,024: respectively. The following tnhle :hnwx the month and
ycar-m—dale totals oflhc privilege tax and the accrued distnhuttnn. (m thousands) to he transferred in the
suhsequent tnuntlt

mnetttvtnnth YeaHoVDal:

my wit my 2an

Spam Wagmng antlcgenx i u t . s um i
interest en Spent Waging Fund . ,
Adnutnrtrsuuerent my)
Tnva.‘ Avallahlc fur Distrthuttnu mu

ll:



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unnudi|ed-

NOTE 1]- NONDPERATI'NG DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE OF WEST VIRGLVIA

The Lettery perrodrcauy distn'hutes surrrius funds, cxcltmva cr arunuttts incurred and derrved from limllcd
video 1ottery and a portion or racetrack video tuttery fimds, to the Statc arWest virgrnia rn accordance with
the lcgislatinn, rat the year endrng June 30, 2019 the State Legisiature budgeted $129,293,550 nfesfimsled
profits of the Lnttery for distrihuuens to designated specml revenuc accounls nfthe State of West Virginia.
With regard to the Sum: [allay Fund, legislation nipuiatcs that deht senrice payun-nrs be given a priomy over
a11 other transfers in rnstances where estimated prnms are not sumcrcnt tn pmvide for paymcnl of aii
atrtrrnpriated distributions. Deht service payments cf$l,EO0.00D, $1,000,000, and $500,000 per rnanth fur the
Cu'sl ten months stench fiscal year curreatiyhayc such priority Transfcrs rnade yulsuanl tn the State Excess
Inncry Revenue Fund have similar requircmems: cumily payments are $5,300,001) per month rnr the firm
tenmanths crcach tiscai year, in addition Legislauun trnrviries that irrn any nrtrnth, there is a shortage cf
runth in the State Excess Loncry Revenue Fund to make debt sertrce payments, the nowssary amount shaii be
transferred [mm the State Lnttery Fund to cover such shnrtrnii, aher the State [nnzry Fund debt servrcc
payments hnye been made. Repayments tn the State Lottery Fund are required to he made in subsequenl
months as funds become ayariahle. For the month ended June 30, 2019 the Lottery hns accrucd uddiu'cnai
dismbulions of5161,954,215 The Lottery is a nunrappmprialcd state agenty and therttnre docs nol hate u
ingnity adapted annua1budget.

A sutnrnnry of the cash distnhntrens rnnde tn cenain state ngencres tn conform to the 1egrs1rrtrun rniinws (in
thousands).

BUDGETARY DISTRIBUTION Vermont:

Stnte Laney [unid'
Cmmnniiy and Technical Canege s t 4.997
Bureau of Senior Sertrces 45,169
Depanmnnnmdncntittrt 11.527
Library Carntnrssinn
HudrsrEducatrcninheyCnrnnrrnmn
raurrstrr 6,550
Naturai Rearrurcet 3.195
Drvisica ofCulmre at 11rstory 4,0791

mnnrunentafEducauan at Ans 250
hdutatrtrrtniarnndcast Audmrily 7,359
tcttnnnuc neteinpsrrent AuLhnri‘y 9,991
achnni Bu1ldtng Aulhomy

10ml Smle Louery rund s » s 135,557

15
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-Un:|ld.ited-

Stale Buss Innerv Revenue Fund
Emnnnuc Developmm Fund 5 0 21,020
Higher Mucalimn 1npmvemm1Fund 15,000
GenerulPurpose Accuum 65,000
Higher Education 1mmvemeu1 Fund 29,000
Stale Furk ImplovememFund 5,000
School BuildingAmhomy 11909
Rcfundablc Cuediz 1.71 I 9,456
WVRacmg Commisxinn 2.000
WVDcpm‘lmml cfllcakh and HumanResources
Teachers RetverrtnlSavings
Dwuum ofHuman Services 15:17 35,203
WVLDttery surnmry Tmusfcxs 50,022
Czneml Revenue -
Oflice afTechnology 111425

rims [lottery Surphls -
Wes1 Va lnfi‘askmctun; Com-m1] 44.000

Tmui SLa‘e beess lnllcry 1m Cum: Fund 5 11,421 3|6,1 15

TomBudgmry dumbunnns- 1; 452,772

chcrdns Instant T1ckelFund 0 50 0 s13

Totalnanapclalmgdlstnbuuuns in due

StaleochslWrginia (cash basis) 11 17,4721 3 453,215

Acumed unnopcmfing dismblmnns, begmning (141044) (120.850)
Accmcd nunupmting d1slnbuliou>,md 161 914 161,954

8 494,37?
NOTE 12 , LEASES
The lottery leases, under a cancelablc spa-sung lense, ils ofiicc and warehnuse faciliucs The Lnnery also
1cm various office equinrnm under ngrecnicm considered 10 be cancchble operating isms. Renud
expense rm the fisml Mrlurdate ended June 30, 21119 and June so, 2011 approximated $203,331 and
$157,948 respecuvdy

The Lottery leases ufficc space undm‘ Lhe 1erms ofa nomcaucclhbl: upernnng base In various lenflms, Rmal
revenues for th: fiscal yenHord/nle ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 appmxlmated $1,099,449 and
$1,043,100 respectively
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WEST VIRGI‘IIALOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unaudited-

NOTE 13 — CDW‘IITMENTS

Per the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 Inc [Amery Commissiun has not designated any unexpended
administrative funds for the acquisition of capllnl assets As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, $8,535,120 and
$9,414,970, respectively, Lire included in unrestricted net position and net lnvEStmcnl in capital assets for this
purpose,

NOTE 14 - RETIREMENTBENEFITS

All Tullelimc Lottery cmplttyces are eligilile to participate in the State ufWest Virginia Public Employees
Retirement System (PERSL tr inst-sharing mullipletemployerdefined henelil public employee retirement
syskm'l The PERS is one of several plans adminimod by the Wcsl Vuginin Consolidated Public Retirement
(CPRB) tinder the direction or its Board oi Trustees, which consists of the Gevemnr, State Auditrrr, Stute
Treasurer, Secretary of the Department of Administration, and nine members appowd by the Govcmorcm; prepares separately issued tinaneial mlcmtzuls mvering all retirement systems it administers, whieh
can he obtained from Consolidated Public Retirement Board, 4101 MacCorkIe Ave 5.13, Charleston West
Virginia 25304-1635,

Emplnyees who retire at or aficr ago sixty with five or more years ofwnnihulory smviee nr who retire at inalter ago tillyfitie and have eumpleted Iwcrllyrfive years of credited service nitlr age and credited sertiee
equal in eighty or greater nre eligible rni retirement benefits as estahlislrerl by State Mamie Reurerrrent
henefrts are payable monthly rer life, in the hum of a smughlrlinz annuity equal to two pereent of the
Employee's average annual salary firm: the highest 35 eonseeutive mentht within the last ln yetrrs of
employmeul. multiplied by the numberoiyears erthe employee'scredited servieo at the time ofredxemml

Covered employees hired prior '0 July 1, ztlls are mqlllred to contribute 45% or their salary to the PERS
Covcmd tanplrryees hired an nr afier luly 1, ms “ill eonrnhute dun/t. of their salary to the PERS Tier ll
The [onery is required to eentn‘hnle 13 5",. of eovered cmplcyccs' ~alaries to the PERS The required
employee and employer contribution percentages have been estahlt ed and ehariged fi'mn lime to time by
action urthe State Legislaune The required contribullom are net aetriari v determined; ltmvever. actuarial
valuations are performed to assist the Legislature in determining appropriate eentnhutious. The lottery and
employee eonuihutions, fur the month ending June 30, Zinc and tiseal year.to-date are as follows (in
thousands)

fluncZElmw 7 Yemtmnate ,
Fmeloyee Cumnhutlons a 2X 5 3M
lottery oeirmhrrrrens X50

Tom uunmhuumls s we
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Unnudit¢dr

NOTE 15 - RISKMANAGEMENT

The lottery is exposed to various risks ofluss relnteri to tons; then or, or damage to, and destruction ofassets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The lottery pariicipates in several risk
management programs administered by the State of West Virginia batch of these risk pools has issued
separate audited l'mancial reports on their operations. Those reports include the required slrm'ilclncnlary
inronnatiun mncemmg the reconciliation of claims liabilities by type of contract and Inn-year claim
development interrnatron. Complete financial statements or the individual Humane: enterprise funds can be
obtained directly from their respective administrative ofiiccs

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE

Tire Lottery can-res workers compensation insurance coverage through a commercial insurance carrier, The
commercial insurance carrier is paid a monthy rated premium lo provide rarnrpensauon fol lnjurics sustained
in the course oterupleyment

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE AGENCY (PEIA)

The lottery participates in the Public Employees insurance Ageney which provides an employee benefit
insurance program to employees. PEIA was established by the State of West Virginia for Smlc agencies,
institutions of higher education Boards of Education and component units or the State in addition local
govemmenial entities and certain charitable and public service organizations may request to be covered by
PEIA FHA provides a base employee benefit insurance plug-am which includes hospiud, surgical. major
medical. prescription drug and basic life and nwldcmal death. Underwriting and rare setting policies are
established by FEM. The cost of all coverage as deternained by PEIA shall be paid by the participants
Premiums are established by PEIA and are paid monthly, and are dependent upon, among other things.
coverage required number or dependents, state vs non state employees and active employees vs. retired
employees and level of compensation. Covemgt: under these programs is limited to 51 million lifetime for
health and 310.000 ol‘life insurance coverage.

Tire PEIA risk pool retains all risks for the hodth and prescnpnon l'eatures of its indemnity plan, PEIA has
tidly pansrerredthe risks of coverage to the Managed Care Organiratrnn (MCO) Plan to the plan provider, and
has transferred the risks of the lire insurance coverage to a third party insurer. FHA presently charges
equivalent premiums for participants in either the indemnity plan or the MCO Plan Altogether. PEIA insures
approximately 205,000 lxldivlduals, including participants and dependents,

BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT (BRLM)

The Lottery pamcipates in the West Virginia board olesk and insurance Management (BRJM). a common
r-islr pool currently operating as a common risk mauagmlent and insurance program for all State agencies.
taimpotrenr units, and other local governmental agencies who wrsh to participate The lottery pays an annual
premriun to BRIM for its general insurance coverage, Fund underwriting and rate setting policies are
established byam, The cost or all all/mg: is determined by ERIM shall be paid by the participants The
BRIM risk pool retains the risk of the first $1 million per property event and purchases excess insurance on
losses above that level Exoeb coverage. through an outside insurer under this prepam is limited to $200
million per event subject to mits on certain property. BRIM has SI million per rrceirrrenee covraagemaximum on all \hirdeparly liability claims
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“2111.11.11:OF REVENUES AN: NET REVENUES OF ‘1 H 11

LOTTERY 14cm)Mm Exc1. ' TTERY 1111511
12011 THE TWELVEMUNTIIrnmou 11mm) JUNE 311, 21119

11.: Thu .nds)

Cum.“Mnnm 115cm YEAR
Actual Am: Pm'uledGrass Rcvcnurs

1mmwas 9,579 115 595 91111011
01.71155 31.1111 515.55 14,501 111.4110Mama: vmea 11mm 45.017 505,547 444,005
Limimdwdw 11111511 32,112 312,230 349.5110
Racemck 1111c games 2,1111 35,5311 25,3011
111mm “son 511 7,3511 4,400
Spam whgermg 44 1,191 ,Toml Jams revcmms 91111111 71,371: 1,113.147 977,751:

Nu 115mm» 1mm Mud and Excess 12mm Fund

1 nllery Fund
1115mm gmes 1,115 170 13,177 111,445
0571111: gum 1,7211 1445 25,153 17,255
Rncw'nck Video 12mm 5,135 4 521.1 101,252 95,521
Spumwagering 37 , 1.519 ,Tom] 1.1mm Fund mmmues 1.117 5,144 141,101 125,301

mus 1mm Fund
Racetrack V1deo lnxlcry 15,9113 12,455 111,157 1171.333
11mm Video 12111111 15,557 15 154 115,719 154.452mud V1dgo Loucry 1-m- 12 , 13,115 1,510
Raven-Eek 13b]: games 1,427 1 1111; 17 4111 14,374
Hmnnc rason 2011 114 2.751 1,591
155111111351Lultc'ry Fund Nu Revmum 52.909 25,122 154.175 210.257

TohlNu 11:11an 51,125 3.11555 412,971 413,565
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